Cadence Enterprises Private Limited
Regd. Office: Ground Floor, New Udaan Bhawan, Opp. Terminal-3, Near 1G1
Airport, New Delhi-110037
CIN: US2100DL200SPTC172118
Ph: +91 11 49216738
Email: ajaykumar.mohanty@gmrgroup.in
Website: www.cadenceenterprises.in
e e e e e e e e

September 07, 2024

BSE Limited

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers
Dalal Street, Kala Ghoda, Fort
Mumbai- 400001

Dear Sir/Madam,

Sub: Annual Report of the Company for the Financial Year 2023-24 pursuant
to Regulation 53(2) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosura
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("SEBI LODR Regulations”)

Ref: BSE Scrip code: 974478, 974479 & 974480

We wish to inform that the 16th Annual General Meeting ('AGM') of Cadence
Enterprises Private Limited ('the Company') will be held on Monday, September 30,
2024 at 09:30 A.M. (IST) at Nectar Conference Room, New Udaan Bhawan, Opp.
Terminal 3, Near IGI Airport, New Delhi- 110037 to transact the business as set out in
the 16™ AGM Notice.

Pursuant to Regulations 53(2) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, we are enclosing copy of the Annual Report for the
Financial Year 2023-24, inter-alia containing the financial statements (Standalone and
Consolidated) together with the reports of Directors and the Auditors thereon along
with the notice of 16" (Sixteenth) Annual General Meeting of the Company scheduled
to be held on Monday, September 30, 2024 at 09:30 A.M. (IST).

The said Annual Report is also being dispatched to the members and debenture holders
of the Company and is made available on the website of the Company i.e.
https: nceenterprises.in

Reguest you to please take the same on record.
Thanking you,

Yours Faithfully,

For Cadence Enterprises Private Limited
Ajay Kum uﬁnntv

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

Encl: Annual Report



Cadence Enterprises Private Limited
Regd. Office: Ground Floor, New Udaan Bhawan, Opp. Terminal-3, IGI Airport,
MNew Delhi-110037
CIN: US2100DL2008PTC172118
Ph:+91 11 49216738
Email: ajaykumar.mohanty@gmrgroup.in

NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 16" (Sixteenth) Annual General Meeting ("AGM’) of
the members of Cadence Enterprises Private Limited will be held on Monday,
September 30, 2024 at 09.30 A.M. at Nectar Conference Room, New Udaan Bhawan
Complex, Opp. Terminal -3, Indira Gandhl International Airport, New Delhi- 110037
at shorter notice to transact the following businesses:

Ordinary Business:

1. To consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the
financial year ended March 31, 2024, together with the Reports of the Board of
Directors and Auditors thereon.

By order of the Board of Directors
For Cadence Enterprises Priv Limited

Ravi Majeti
Director
DIN: 07106220

Place : New Delhi
Date : August 13, 2024




NOTES

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING (AGM) IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND
VOTE ON A POLL INSTEAD OF HIMSELF / HERSELF AND THE PROXY NEED
NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. Pursuant to Section 105 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19 of the Companies (Management &
Administration) Rules, 2014, a person can act as a proxy on behalf of members
not exceeding 50 and holding in the aggregate not more than 10% of the total
share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. In case a proxy is proposed
to be appointed by a member holding more than 10% of the total share capital of
the Company carrying voting rights, then such proxy shall not act as a proxy for
any other person or shareholder. Proxies, in order to be effective, must be
received at the registered office of the Company not less than forty-eight hours
before the commencement of the AGM.

2. Copies of all documents referred to in the notice annexed thereto are available for
inspection at the registered office of the Company between 10.00 AM. and
1.00 P.M. on all working days till the date of the AGM,

3. Corporate members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend
the AGM in terms of Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013 are requested to
send to the Company, a certified copy of the Board Resolution authorizing their
representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting.

4. Members or Proxies should bring the attendance slip duly filled in for attending
the AGM,

5. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding
maintained under Section 170 of the Companies Act, 2013 the Register of
Contracts or Arrangements in which the directors are interested maintained under
Section 189 of the Act will be available electronically for inspection by the
members during the AGM,

6. During the period beginning 24 hours before the time fixed for the commencement
of Meeting and ending with the conclusion of the Meeting, a Member would be
entitled to inspect the proxies lodged at any time during the business hours of the
Company. Copies of all documents referred to in the notice and accompanying
explanatory statement are available for inspection at the registered office of the
Company between 10.00 a.m. and 1.00 p.m. on all working days till the date of
the AGM and at the venue of the Meeting for the duration of the Meeting.

7. Route-map to the venue of the meeting is provided at the end of the Notice.



Cadence Enterprises Private Limited
Regd. Office: Ground Floor, New Udaan Bhawan, Opp. Terminal-3, IGI Airport,
New Delhi-110037
CIN: U52100DL2008PTC172118
Ph: +91 11 49216738

Email: ajaykumar.mohanty@gmrgroup.in
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ATTENDANCE SLIP
(Please present this slip at the Entrance of the Meeting Hall)

I certify that [ am a member/ proxy/authorized representative for the member of the
Company. ;

I hereby record my presence at the Annual General Meeting of the Company being
held at Nectar Conference Room, New Udaan Bhawan Complex, Opp. Terminal -3,
Indira Gandhi International Airport, New Delhi- 110037 on Monday, September 30,
2024 at 09,30 A.M.

To be signed at the time of handing over the slip at the Meeting Hall.

(Signature of Member/Proxy)

Name:
Regd. Folio No.:
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Address: Nectar Conference Room, New .Udaan Bhawan Complex, Opp. Terminal -3, Indira Gandhi
International Airport, New Delhi- 110 037



Cadence Enterprises Private Limited
Regd. Office: Ground Fioor, New Udaan Bhawan, Opp. Terminal-3, 1G| Airport,
New Delhi-110037
CIN: US2100DL2008PTC172118
Ph: 491 11 49216738

Email: ajaykumar mohanty@gmrgroup.in

Bo f
Dear Members,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 16" (Sixteenth) Board's Report
together with the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year
ended March 31, 2024,

Financial Resuits:
Your Company has prepared its Financial Statements as per IND AS for the financial
year 2023-24,

Presented below are the highlights of performance of the Company for the financial

year ended 2023-24:
Amount INR (in lakhs)

Particulars Standalone Consolidated
March 31, | March 31,  March 31,  March 31,
2024 2023 2024 2023
Revenue from operations - . - =
Other Income 4693.06 1276.00 4693.06 1276.00
' Total Revenue 4693.06 | 1276.00| 4693.06| 1276.00
Expenses:- — i o
"Egpreciatlun and amortization 13.24 0.04 13.24|  0.04|
expenses
Finance costs 4892.24 1310.38 4892.72 1310.65
Other expenses 13,19  17.42 85.36 17.87
Total Expenses 4918.67 | 1327.84 4991.32 1328.56
Profit/(Loss) before taxation (225.61) (51.84) (298.26) (52.56)
Less: Provision for Taxation
| - Current tax - - 26.26 -
- Earlier years Tax | 26.26| - - -
- Deferred Tax - - - -
Profit/(Loss) after Tax (251.87) (51.84) | (324.52)|  (52.56)




: i lights):

The Company has reported a net loss of ¥251.87 lakhs during the financial year
2023-24 as against a net loss of ¥51.84 lakhs during the previous financial year on
standalone basis. Whereas, the Company has reported a net loss of 324,52 lakhs
during the financial year 2023-24 as against a net loss of ¥52.56 lakhs during the
previous financial year on consolidated basis.

During the year under review, 783 nos. of Non-Convertible Debentures of the
Company were redeemed on December 28, 2023.

Dividend ropriation to R rve:

In view of the losses during the year under review, your Board of Directors have not
recommended any dividend for the financial year 2023-24,

In the absence of profits, the Company does not propose to carry any amount to any
reserves in the Balance Sheet during the financial year 2023-24.

During the year under review, the Company has not accepted any deposits from
public.

Holding Company:

The Company has retained its status as subsidiary of GMR Enterprises Private Limited
during the Financlal year 2023-24.

During the year under review, Salvia Real Estates Private Limited continues to be the
subsidiary of the Company.

A statement containing salient features of the financial statements of the subsidiary
company in Form ADC-1 is appended as Annexure - 1 to this Report.

As on March 31, 2024, your Company had no Associate Companies.
o i are

During the year under review, there was no change in the Authorized Share Capital of
the Company. The Authorized Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 1,00,000/- (Rupees
One Lakh only) divided into 10,000 (Ten Thousand) Equity shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees
Ten only) each.

During the year under review, there was no change in the Paid up Share Capital of
the Company. The total Paid up Share Capital as on March 31, 2023 stands to 10,000
(Ten Thousand) Equity shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each aggregating to Rs.
1,00,000/- (Rupees One Lakh only).



Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

During the period under review, there was no change in the composition of Board of
Directors of the Company.

During the financial year, Mr. Ajay Kumar Mohanty was appointed as Company
Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company w.e.f. August 09, 2023 and Ms.
Khusboo Prasad has resigned from the position of Company Secretary and Compliance
Officer of the Company w.e.f. August 08, 2023.

Declaration by an independent director(s)

The provisions of Section 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to appointment
of Independent Director are not applicable.

Managerial remuneration

None of the employees who have worked throughout the year or a part of the financial
year were getting remuneration in excess of the threshold mentioned under Section
197(12) of the Act read with rule 5(2) of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration)
Rules, 2014,

Good corporate governance does not mean merely compliance and simply a matter of
employing checks and balances; rather it is considered as a continuous process for
superior delivery of Company’s abjectives with a view to translate opportunities into
reality. With this conceptual clarity your Company had adopted Code of Conduct for
Directors and Senior Managerial Personnel and Code of Business Conduct and Ethics
with effect from June 18, 2011. The primary objective is to encode and adopt a
corporate culture of conscience and consciousness, transparency and openness in the
business operations, fairmess and accountability in carrying out the financial
transactions, having the propriety, equity and sustainable value creation, to follow the
ethical practices and to develop capabilities and identify opportunities that best serve
the goal of value creation, thereby creating an outstanding company in the field it is
engaged in.

The management ensures that transactions carried out has the authorization and are
recorded properly in the accounting records to enable the preparation of the financial
statements at the year end, conforming to the generally accepted accounting practices
and principles.

Statutory Auditors:

M/s B, Purushottam & Co., Chartered Accountants (Reg. No.002808S), were re-
appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company at the 13" (Thirteenth) Annual
General Meeting (AGM) held on September 20, 2021, to hold office from the conclusion
of the Annual General Meeting of the Company for the financial year 2021-22 until the
conclusion of the 18" (Eighteenth) Annual General Meeting (AGM) to be held in the
financial year 2025-26.



Details of fraud reported by Auditors under Section 143(12):

During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors have not reported any instances
of frauds committed in the Company by its Officers or Employees to the Board under
Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, details of which needs to be mentioned
in this Report.

Auditors’ Report:

There are no qualifications or adverse remarks in the Auditors’ Report which require
any clarification / explanation.

Number of meetings of the Board of Directors:
During the period under review, your Board of Directors met 10 (ten) times i.e.,

- May 29, 2023

- August 08, 2023

- September 12, 2023
- November 09, 2023
- January 02, 2024

-  February 07, 2024

The interval between the Board Meetings was within the pericd prescribed under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Number of the Board meetings attended by the Directors during the financial year
2023-24 is as follows:

Name of the Director Number of the Board meetings attended
Mr. P.V. Subbarao W . . ——
Mr. Ravi Majeti ] I -

There are no committees formed by the Board of Directors of the Company.

The provisions of Section 178(1) and (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 regarding
Nomination and Remuneration Committee are not applicable to the Company.

To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and
explanations obtained by them, your Directors make the following statements in terms
of Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013:

a) that in the preparation of the annual accounts/ annual financial statements for the
year ended March 31, 2024, the applicable accounting standards have been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures, if any;

b) that such accounting policies as mentioned in the Notes to the Financial Statements
have been selected and applied consistently and judgments and estimates have
been made that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of

4




the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year March 31, 2024
and of the Statement of Profit & Loss of the Company for that period ended;

c) that proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud
and other irregularities;

d) that the annual accounts/ annual financlal statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis;

e) that proper systems have been devised to ensure that the laid internal financial
controls were followed and were adeguate and operating effectively.

fl that proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions
of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating
effectively.

h referen

The Company has put in place policies and procedures including the design,
implementation, and monitoring of internal controls over its operations to ensure
orderly and efficient conduct of its businesses, including adherence to Company's
policies and procedures, safeguarding of assets, prevention and detection of fraud,
accuracy and completeness of accounting records and timely preparation of reliable
financial disclosures under the Companies Act, 2013.

D ntur g

As per Regulation 53 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the contact details of the Debenture
Trustees of the Company are provided in ‘Annexure - 2’ that forms part of this Report.

ran under section 186:

Disclosure on particulars relating to Loans, guarantees or investments made by the
Company under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the financial year ended
March 31, 2024 are explained and provided in the notes to accounts of audited
financial statement of the Company.

All contracts / arrangements / transactions entered by the Company during the
financial year with related parties were in the ordinary course of business and on an
arm's length basis. During the year, the Company had not entered into any contract
/ arrangement / transaction with related parties which could be considered material.
Your Directors draw attention of the members to notes to accounts of financial
statement which set out related party disclosures.

Further, the Company has made required disclosures in compliance with the
Accounting Standard on Related Party Disclosures in terms of Schedule V of the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Reguirements) Regulations, 2015 (as amended).

5
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As on the date of this report, your Directors are not aware of any circumstances, not
otherwise dealt with in this Report or in the financial statement of the Company, which
would render any amount stated in the accounts of the Company as misleading.
Further, in the opinion of the Directors, no item, transaction or event of a material
and unusual nature has arisen which would affect substantially the results or the
operations of the Company for the financial year in respect of which this report is
made and no material changes and commitments affecting the financial pesition of
the Company had occurred in the interval between the end of the financial year and
the date of this report.

f en C tion, f ¥xchange earnin

and outgo

The particulars as prescribed under Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are set out hereunder:

A.Conservation of energy:

Your Company is not engaged in any manufacturing activity and hence the furnishing
of particulars is not applicable to the Company.

B. Technology absorption:

Your Company is not engaged in any manufacturing activity and hence the furnishing
of particulars is not applicable to the Company.

C. Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo:

There was no Foreign Exchange Earnings and Foreign Exchange Outgo during the year
2023-24

Maintenance of Cost Records

The Provisions of section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to maintenance
of Cost records are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, such accounts and
records are not required to be maintained by the Company.

Ri ement:

The Company has robust business risk management framework capable of identifying
business risks, commensurate with its activities. In the opinion of the Board, presently
the Company is not facing business risk which may threaten the existence of the
Company.



Corporate Social Responsibility

The requirement of constituting Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee
pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the Company.

Change in the nature of business:

During the year under review, there was no change in the nature of business of the
Company.

ails of significant a | order tors or courts
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There are no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or
Tribunals impacting the gaing concern status and the Company'’s operations in future.

Compliance with the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace

During the period under review, there was no incidence where any complaint relating
to sexual harassment was reported pursuant to Section 22 of the Sexual Harassment
of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

Vigil Mechanism:

The provisions of Section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to establishing
of a vigil mechanism are not applicable to the Company. However, your Company has
adopted an Ombudsman process for receiving and redressing employees’ complaints
relating to any fraudulent financial or ather information that results in viclation of the
Company's Policies or Code of Business Conduct to management etc.

R mn:

The Annual Return of the Company In Form MGT-7 pursuant to Section 92(3) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 12 of Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended is placed at the website of the Company at
the following link: www.cadenceenterprises.in

Compliance with Secretarial Standards on Beard and Annual General
Meetinas

The Company has duly complied with the Secretarial Standards on Meetings of the
Board of Directors (§5-1) and General Meetings (S5-2) issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India,



Disclosure related to Insolvency and Bankruptcy

There are no proceedings initiated/pending against your Company under the
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 which materially impact the business of the
Company.

| ne-Ti

There were no instances where your Company required the valuation for one-time
settlement or while taking the loan from the Banks or Financial institutions.

Acknowledgement:

Your Directors would like to express their sincere appreciation for the guidance and
co-operation received from the Government Authorities, Securities and Exchange
Board of India (SEBI), Stock Exchanges, Financial Institutions, Banks, Debenture
Trustees, Debenture Holders and Members during the year under review. Your
Directors also wish to place on record their deep sense of appreciation for the
committed services by the employees of the Company and its subsidiaries.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Cadence Enterprises Private Limited

8s

Ravi Majeti Venkata Subbarao Poosarla
Place: New Delhi Director Director
Date: August 13, 2024 DIN: 07106220 DIN: 03634510




FORM ADC-{

Annexure-|

{Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of Section 128 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with

Rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the Financial Statements of Subsidiaries | Associate Companies | Joint Ventures

Part “A": Subsidiaries

(Amount n INR)
8l Particulars (1)
Na.

1 Name of the Subsidiary Salvia Real Estates Private Limlited
2 Reparting period for the Subsidary concemed, if different from the Holding Company's WA (April 01, 2023 to March 31,2024)

repariing perind

Date since when subsidiary was acquired April 04, 2022
4 Reporting currency and Exchange rale a5 on the last date of the relevan| Financal yearin INR

the case of foreign subsdianes.
5 Share Capital 96,00,000
E Reserves & Surplus (1,01,72,844.98) |
7 Total Assets e hette
8 Total Liahiiities B.30,437
L Invesiments
10. Tumover |Revenue from operations) -
11. | ProfitiiLoss) before taxation (72,64,752.98)
12 Provision for taxation / Deferred tax
13, Profit after taxation (72,64,752.98)
14, Proposed Dividend -
15, % of Shareholding (Equity) 1005%
Notes:

1 Mames of Subsidianes which are yel to commence operations = MN.A
2 MNames of Subsidianes which have been liquidated or sold during the year — N.A



Part "B": Associates and Joint Ventures
Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to
Associata Companies and Joint Vantures

{Amount in INR)
5l. No. Mame of Associates
' Nama of the Associates! Joint Venture NA
2. |Latest Audited Balance Shest Date NA
3 Shares of Associate/Joint Venture held by the Company an the year end
No. NA
Amaunt of Investment in Associates/Jeint Venlurs NA
Extent of Holding% NA
4, Description of how there Is significant influence NA
5 Reason why the Associate | Joint Venture is not consolidated NA
8. | Net worth atiributable to Shareholding as per Audited Balance Sheet NA
1. Profit | Loss for the year
Congiderad in Consolidation NA
MNat Consideed in Consclidation NA
Notes:

1. Names of Associates or Joint Venlures which are yet to commence operalions, — N.A
2. Names of Associates or Joint Ventures which have been Equidated o sold during the year - N.A
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Cadence Enterprises Private Limited

-
Ravi Majeti Venkata Subbarao Poosarla
Place: New Delhi Director Director
Date: August 13, 2024 DIN: 07106220 DIN: 03634510




Cadence Enterprises Private Limited
Regd. Office: Ground Floor, New Udaan Bhawan, Opp. Terminal-3, IGI Airport,

New Delhi-110037

CIN: U52100DL2008PTC172118

Ph: 49111 49216738

Email: ajaykumar.mohanty@gmrgroup.in

Annexure 2

Details of Debenture Trustee as on March 31, 2024

Name of the Debenture

Catalyst Trusteeship Limited

Trustee
Address of Debenture GDA House, First Floor, Plot No. 85,
Trustee S. No. 94 & 95, Bhusari Colony (Right)

Kothrud, Pune- 411038

E-mail ID of Debenture
Trustee

ComplianceCTL-Mumbai@ctltrustee.com

Contact details of Debenture

Tel No.: 022-49220555; Fax: 022-45220505

Trustee
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Cadence Enterprises Private Limited
= e
Ravi Majeti Venkata Subbarao Poosarla
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT

To the members of Cadence Enterprises Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial staterments of the Cadence Enterprises Private
Limited (“the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024, and the Statement of
Profit and Loss (Including Other Comprehensive Income], the Statement of Changes in Equity and
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred 1o as
the "financial statements”).

in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesald financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") In
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under sec 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended ("Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2024, its loss and other comprehensive loss, changes in equity
and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements In accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(*SAs") specified under section 143({10) of the Companies Act 2013. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone
Financial Statements section of our repart, We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) together with the
independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities In accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics, We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufticient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, In our professional Judgment, were of most significance In our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed In the context of
our audlr financial statements as a whole and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. We have determined that there are no key audit matters to
communicate in our report,

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Campany's Board of Directors and the Management are responsible for the other Information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis,
Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Report and Shareholder's Information, but does naot
include the financial statements and our auditar's report thereon.

Our apinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information (s materjally inconsistent with the
financial statements, or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we ara reguired to report that fact. When we read these reports
it we conclude that there is material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter
with those charged with governance.

Responsibility of the Board of Directors and the Management for Financial Statements

The Compamy's Board of Directors and the Management are responsible for the matters stated in
Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income / loss, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company In accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in India, Including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records In accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
the design, implementation and malntenance of adequate Internal financlal controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the financlal statements that glve a true and falr view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors and the Management are responsible for
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and wsing the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to Uguidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no real/stic alternative but to do so.

The Beoard of Directors and the Management are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial
reporting process.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our abjectives are to ohtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but 1s not a guarantee that an
audit cenducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatemant when It exists,
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considerad material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
kasls of thesa financial statements,

As part of an audit In accordance with SAs, we exercise professlonal judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtaln audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud s higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.
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# Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies
Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adeguate internal financial controls system In place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management,

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are reguired to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audlt evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a gaing concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements In the financial statements that, individually or In
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and gualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and {ii) to
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financlal statemeants.

We communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significam audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
imernal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide thase charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and 1o communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter ar when, In extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public Interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure A,

a statement on the matters specitied in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Further ta our comments in Annexure A, as required under section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our
audit, we report that, to the extent applicable that:
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a.

We have sought and obtained all the infermatien and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by Law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books,

The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss (including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of accounts.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards
specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014.

On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2024, and
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March
2024, from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adegquacy of the Internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B" to this report.

With respect to the other matters to be Included in the Auditors” Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to explanations given to us, no
remuneration was pald by Company to its directors during the year.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report In accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies {(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, In our opinlon and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position
in its financial position. Refer note 27 to the financial statements.

fi. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative centracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

iil. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2024.

Iv. (a) The management has represented, to the best of its knowledge and belief, that no
funds (which are material either individually or in aggregate), other than those
disclosed in note 4 to the financial statements, have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds of share premium or any other sources or kind
of funds) by the Company to of in any other person or entity, including forelgn entity
{“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether directly or indirectly lend or invast In
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Lltimate Beneficiaries;

(B) The management has represented, to the best of its knowledge and belief, that no
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V.

vl

funds {which are material either individually or In aggregate), other than those
disclosed In note 11 to the financial statements, have been recelved by the
Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties™),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, whether directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified In any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
("Ultimate Beneficlaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

{c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate In the clreumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused
us 1o believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11(ge), as
provided under {a) and (b} above, contain any material misstatement.

The Company did not propose, declare or pay dividends during the year ended 31 March
2024,

Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used an
accounting software for maintaining its books of accounts for the period ended 31 March
2024, which has a feature of recording audit trall (edit log) facility and the same has operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the
course of the audit we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being
tampered with.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable fram 01 April
2023, reporting under rule Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on
preservation of audit trall as per the statutory requirements for record retention is not
applicable for the financlal year ended 31 March 2024.

for B. Purushottam & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration Mo, 002B08S

ale

B Mahidhar Krrishna
Partner

Membership No. 243632
LDIN: 24243632BKCOGM1002

Place: Chennal
Date: 23 May 2024
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Annexure Ato the Independent Auditor's report of even date to the members of Cadence Enterprises
Private Limited, on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

{Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of
our report of even date)

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view of the
financial statements of the Company and taking inte consideration the information and explanations
given to us and the books of accounts and other records examined by us, in the normal course of audi,
and to the best of our knowledge, we report that:

{l} Inrespect of the Company’s property, plant and equipment and intangible assets:

(a) (A} the Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of praperty, plant and equipment

(B] the Company does not have intangible assets as at the balance sheet date and hence
reporting under clause 3(i){a)(B) of the Order is not applicable

{b) the Company has a program of physical verification of property, plant and equipment at
regular intervals so to cover all the assets which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard
to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. According to the information and
explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verlfication.

{c)  thetitle deeds of all immovable properties held by the Company as disciosed innote 3 to the
financial statements are held in the name of the Company.

{d) the Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and eguipment and intangible
assets during the year.

(e} noproceedings have been Inltiated during the year or are panding against the Company as at
31 March 2024 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibitions} Act, 1988 {as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder

(i) (a) The Company does not hold inventory and hence reporting under clause 3({iij{a) of the
Order is not applicable.

(B) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital imits in excess of INR 5 crores, in
aggragate, at any points of time during the year, from banks or financlal institutions on the
basis of security of current assets and hence reporting under clause 3(ii){b) of the Orderis
not applicable.

(iif) the Company has granted unsecured loan to a Company during the year, in respect of which:
(a) the Company has provided lpans or advances In the nature of loans to its Holding Company
during the year, as reported In the table below:

Name Canstitution Nature Aggregate Balance as at
[relationship) amount of 31 March
loan given 2024
during the
year
GMR Enterprises Company Loan Given INR 220 lakhs INR 14,799
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(Iv)

{v)

{vi)

(vi

{wili)

(ix)

Private Limited (Holding lakhs
Company)
the Company has not provided loans or advances in the nature of loans, or stood
guarantee, or provided security to parties other than related parties.

{b) In our opinion, the terms and conditions of the grant of loans, during the year are, prima
facle, not prejudicial to the Company's Interest.

(e} inrespect of the loans granted by the Company, the schedule of repayment of principal and
payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayments of principal amounts and
recelpts of interest have generally been regular as per stipulation.

(d} in respect of loans granted by the Company, there is no overdue amount remaining
outstanding as at the balance sheet,

{e) noloan granted by the Company, which has fallen due during the year, has heen renewed or
extended or fresh loans granted to settie the overdue of existing loans given to the same
parties.

(fy the Company has not granted any loans or advances which are either repayable on demand
or without specilying any terms or periad of repayment during the year.

the Company has not made investments or provided any guaranteéss or security to companies,
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties during the year.

the Company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, in respect of
loans granted, investments made and guarantees and securities provided, as applicable.

the Company has not accepted any deposits from the public 2nd hence the directives Issued by
RB| and the provisions of section 73 to 76 or any ather relevant provisions of the Act and the
Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2015. Hence, reporting under clause 3{vi) of the
Order is not applicable.

the Central Gavernment has not prescribed maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of
section 148 of the Act for the business activities carried out by the Company. Hence, reporting
under clause 3{vi) of the Order is not applicable.

In respect of statutory dues:

{a) the Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident fund,
employees’ state insurance, income-tax, goods and service tax, duty of customs, cess and
other material statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities. There were no
undisputed amounts payable which were outstanding as on 31 March 2024 for a period of
more than six months from the date on which they became payable.

(b] the Company does not have any disputed statutory dues and hence reporting under 3{vil)(b)
of the Order is not applicable.

there were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered
or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961,

{a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment
af interest therson to any lender during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(ix)(a) of
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(b)

e

(d)

(€]

(f)

(x) (a)

(b)

{xi) (a)

(b)

{c)

the Order Is not applicable.

Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank of financial institution or
government or any government authority.

the Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no outstanding term
loans at the beginning of the year and hence reporting under clause 3(lx)(c) of the Order Is
not applicable.

on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on short
term basis have, prima facle, not been used during the year for long-term purposes by the
Company.

on an overall examination of the financlal statements of the Company, the Company has not
taken funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associates.

according to the Information and explanations given ta us, the Company has not raised any
loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or
associate companles.

the Company has notl raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt securities) during the year. Hence, reporting under clause 3({x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable.

the Company has not made preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) during the year. In respect of private
placement of non-convertible debentures made during the year, the Company has duly
complied with the requirements of section 42 and section 82 of the Companies Act, 2013,

The proceeds from the issue have been used for the purpose for which funds were raised,

no fraud by the Company and no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reporting during
the year.

no reporting under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in
Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with
the Central Government, during the date of this report.

as informed by the Company, there were no whistle-blower complaints received during the
year.

(xii) the Company |s not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3(xi) of the Order is not
applicable.

(xiii) In our opinicn, the Company is In compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where
applicable, and the requisite details have been disclosed In the financial statements etc., as
required by the applicable accounting standards,

(xlv} (a)

The Company does not have an Intermal audit system and Is not required to have an
internal audit system as per section 138 of the Act,
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xv)

(s}

{ovil)

(vt

fviil)

(xix)

ystem for the perlod under audit.

the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions its directors or persons connected
with Its directors and hence provisions of section 152 of the Act are not applicable to the
Company,

in our opinion, the Company Is not required to registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934 and Is not @ Core Investment Company [as defined In the Core
Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and hence reporting under clause
3(ovl) and its sub-clauses of the QOrder Is not applicable.

the Company has Incurred cash losses befora tax of INR 238.85 lakhs during the financial year
and cash losses of INR 51.88 lakhs in the immediately preceding financial year covered by our
audit.

there has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets
and payment of financlal liabilities, other information accompanying the financlal statements
and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention,
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
Indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viabllity of the Company. We further
state thal our reporting |5 based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither
give any guarantee nor any assurance that all iabiUties falling due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

the provisions of section 135 are not applicable to the Company and hence reporting under
clause 3{ux) and its sub-clauses of the Order are not applicable.

for B. Purushottam & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 0028085

B Mahidhar Krrishna
Partner

Membership Mo. 243632
LIDIN: 24243632BKCOGM 1002

Place: Chennai
Date:23 May 2024
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Annexure B: Independent Auditors' Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to the
financial statements under clause (I} of sub-sectlon (3) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
[“the Act™)

In conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of Cadence Enterprises Private
Limited [“the Company") for the year ended 31 March 2024, we have audited the intemal financial
controls with reference to financial statements of the Company as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Board of Directors and the Management are responsible for establishing and
malntaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company consldering the essentlal components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Intemnal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (*ICAl'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adeguate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficiemt conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting recards, and the timely preparation of rellable financial Information, as
required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility for the Audit of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial
Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's intemal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accardance with the Guidance Mote on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on
Auditing, Issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143{10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financlal controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both Issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, Those
Standards and the Guidance Note reguire that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
parform the audit to obtaln reasonable assurance about whether adeguate intemnal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Cur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exlsts, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of intemal cantrol based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditer's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or errar.

We beliave that the audit evidence we have obtalned [s sufficlent and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinfon on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Intemmal Financlal Controls Over Financial Reporting
& company's intermal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
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company's internal financial control over financlal reporting includes those policies and procedures
that:

{1} pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reascnable detall, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company.

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that recelpts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acqulsition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statemeants.

Inherent Limitations af Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error of fraud may oceur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the intermal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the intermal financial
control over financial reporting may become inadequalte because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such Internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31 March 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company consldering the essential compaonents of intermal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting Issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

for B. Purushottam & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 0028085

B Mahidhar Krrishna
Partner

Membership No. 243632
UDIN: 24243632BKCOGM1002

Place: Chennal
Date:23 May 2024



Cadence Enterprises Private Limited
Ground Floor, New Udaan Bhawan, Gppesite Terminal-2, 161 Arporl, New Delhl 110037
CIN: US2100DL2008PTCI72118

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2029

{ Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars Notes A e
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
l. Assets
(1) Non-current assets
|a} Property, Plant & Equipments 3 431.53 388.52
{b) Financial Assets
{1} Loans 4 14,799.00 24,275.00
{ii} Investmeants 5 56.00 96.00
{iii] Cther financial Accets ] 5,756.05 123753
[2) Current assets
{a) Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 7 18.87 T.60
(b} Qther current assets 8 1.28 122,85
TOTAL ASSETS 21,102.73 26,127.49
Il EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
|8} Equity Share Capital g 1.00 .00
{b)  Other Equity 10 [331.14) [79.27)
TOTAL EQUITY (330.14) (78.27)
LIABILITIES
(1} MNon-current liabilities
Fimancial Liabilities
(1) Borrawings 11 13,142.73 17,580.24
13,142.73 17,980.24
Current liabilities
(a) Finarcial Lizbilities
{l} Barrowings 11 B.244.76 8,192 66
{ii} Other financial llabilities 12 24.44 £1.96
(o} Cther current lizbilities 13 20.94 10.590
TOTAL LIABILITIES 8,290.14 8,225.52
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 21,102.73 26,127.49
summary of significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are an Integral part of the financial statements. _
As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directars of
for B, Purushottam & Co Cadence Enterprises Private Limited

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number - 0028085

gr- o2

B. Mahidhar Krrishna Ravi Majeti P.V.Subba Rao
Partner Directar Directar
Membership No. 243632 DiN: 07106220 DIN: 03634510
L]
\%euﬂ‘" = ol @_\/‘&,
Place | New Delhi Naween Kumar Verma Ajay Kumar Mahanty
Date | 23rd May'2024 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

M.No. FC5-7133




Cadence Enterprises Private Limited

Ground Floor, New Udaan Bhawan, Opposite Terminal-3, (Gl Alrport, Mew Delhi 110037

CIN- US210001L 2008FTC172118

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2024

{ Rs, In Lakhs)
Particalars MNotes For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
I Revenue from operations 14 -
Il Other income 15 4.693.06 1. 276,00
Hl  Total neoime (1 + 1) 4,693.06 1,276.00
N Expenses
Depreciation and amortisation expense i 13.24 0.04
Finance osts 16 4,892.24 L310.38
Other expenses 17 1318 17.42
Total expensas (IV) 14,918.67 1,327.84
¥V Profit before Tax (Il-Iv) (225.61) {51.84}
Vi Tax expense:
Current tax 25,26
Earfier year tax
Deferrad Tax -
Wil Profit for the peripd (V- Vi) [251.87) {51.84)
Wili Other comprehensive income
Itermis that wili not to be reclassified to profit or less in subsequent -
periods;
Iterms that will be reclassified to profit or 10ss in subsequent pericds: - -
Taxes an above ltems -
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax =
Total comprehensive income for the period, net of tax (VH+VI) (Z51.87) {51.84)
Earnings per equity share;
Rasie & Diluted | R5.Ps) 18 {2,518.71) (518,43)
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financlal statements.

As per our report of even date attached
for B, Purushottam & Co

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number - 0028085

ol

B. Mahidhar Krrishna
Partner
Membership No. 243632

Place : New Dethi

23rd May'2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Cadence Enterprises Private Limited

Joe

P.V.5ubba Rao
Director
DIN: 03634510

..
Ajay Kumar Mohanty

Company Secretary
M.No. FC5-7133
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Cadence Enterprises Private Limited
Ground Floor, New Udaan Bhawan, Dpposite Terminal-3, 1G] Alrport, New Delhl 110037
CIN: USZ2100DL200HPTCIT2118

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2024

{ Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars Equity Share Capital | Retalned eamings | Other comprehensive Tatal
{Note 9) {Note 10) income
{Nate 10)

Balance as at March 31, 1.00 {27.42) . (26.42)
Add/Less :Change in policies and correction of . . .
BITONS

Restated Balance as at April 1, 2022 1.00 (27.42) (26.42)
Profit for the year {51.84) (51.84)
Other comprehensive income 3
Balance as at March 31, 2023 100 {79.26} [78.26)|
Add/Less .Change in policies and correction of - - - -
BITOrS

Restated Balance as at April 1, 2023 1.00 (79.26) . (78.26)
Profit for the year - {251.87) (251.87)
Other comprehensive incomo - -
lssue of Share Capital - .
Balance as at March 31, 2024 1.00 (331.14) - (330.14)

Accompanylng notes form integral part of the financial statement.

Ag per our rapon of even date attached
for B, Purushottam & Co

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number - 0028085

For and on behall of the Board of Directors of

Cadence Enterprises Private Limited

B. Mahidhar Krrishna Ravi Majeti
Partner Director
Membership No.243632 DIN: 07106220
L
iﬂ'p
Place : New Delhi Naveen Kumar Verma
Date ; 23rd May 2024 Chief Financial Officer



Cadence Enterpriics Private Limited
Grounel Fioor, Mew Udsan Shawan, Opposite Termingl-3, 1G] Alrport, Mew Delhl 110037
CIn: U5 DLI00EPTCE?ZIIE
Motws Lo financial statements for the year erded March 31, 2024
1. Corparate Infermation
Cadence Entaiprises Privale Limitad jreferred 1oa "The Compiny™] domiciled in india and micorporated onder the provisions of the Companies Ad. 1956; The Company was
Incorporaled an 1it lan' 2008, The compamy s 0 the busnes of dealing in, walepurchass,import dstrbute sl goods and services and t estlabish and run shops, business centeis,

restEwrants and shopping complexes . Cadence Enterprises Private Limited s & subsidiary company of GWR Enterprites Private Limited The financial stateménts were suthorisod for
lesue In stcordance with & resolutlon al the direcioes or 250d May'2024

2. Significant accounting policies

1.1 Basks of preparation

Thie fimsncial stxtemants of the Company have bean prepared (0 sccordance with indisn dccounting Standards (ind AS) notified purseant fo section 133 of the Companies Ao 2013
et with rule 3 of the Companies [indian Accounting Stantards] Aules, 2015 and Comparses (indian Atcounting Mandards| Amendment Roley, 2016

The finamciol gateéments have been preammd and prosanted on @ historical cosd convention on an acorual Besis, escepl for the certain financial assets and |iabdimios which have baen
smearsuted at tair vahes (fefer accounting policy regarding imancial instruments)

The firanclal staterments are presanted n INR | Rs, Lakhsl, wehich is the funcional currendy, except when othersise indicated

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policles
. Current varsus non-currant dassification

This Cosmgany pesents aszels and llabdties in the Balancs Sheet based on currenty non-current dessilication, An a20et i treated s current whan it is

) Expectad to be reallsed or ntended 1o ba said or consumed in normil operating opds

bl Hele peimaely foe the purposa of tramng

) Eepected b be reslised within teelve manths after ihe reparting period, or

| Cash o cash sguivalent wil=e restricted fram being exchanged o used to setile o Bability for at leas) twelvn marthe aber the reporting peniod

The campany cassilies all ather sssets @ nen-current.

I liakility 5-current whesy

@) It 15 expected 1o be settled in normal sperating of e

1) 1t i held priemanly Tor e puspose of trading

&) 1 due to ba serthad werthin teeslive manths after the reponing period, or

) There 5 no wnconditional right to defes the sefmiement af the liability for at leau twelve menths afier the reporting period
The eompany tassifies all othor Habdities a5 mon-current

Daferred tan agsets and labdities are dassified 25 non-current ansats and Eabilites

Thet agevating cycls i the time between the scquision of assets for procossing and thelr reatisation in cash and rash equivalents. The Corngany has identified twelve manths &
oparating cytle

B Fair vilue measuremesnt

Faitr value Is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a abillty in an orderly tansaction betwesn markes participants a the measurmmient date.

All mssecs and [abilities Tor which fair value is messured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hisrarchy, described = fofows. based on the
lerewemat lewed mput that Is significant te the fair valee measuement a5 2 whole:

= Leval 1< Cused juredjusted | market prices in actve mackers for kentical assets or labames,
w Leve| 2 - Vihumtion techninues for which the lowest (evel Input that |s significent to the fair value measurement is directy or indirecsly observable
® Lewnl 3 - Vilustion technigues forwhich the lowest lesl ingut that is sigraficant to the fair value measurement & unobserable

For assets and lizhiites that sre recognised I the financial sistemients on a recurring basis, the Compaiy determines whether transfers have occarred between tevelvin the ierarchey
by re-assesmng categorisation [based on the lowest leval input thet 45 significant 1o the fair value measurement as @ whole) at the end of each resarting pariod.

For thee purpese of felr value disclonires, the Company hes determined dasses of assews and labilities on the basis of the nature, characterissics and risis of the asset or Rabiliny and
the ledel of the Fair value hierarchy 35 esplamed above

i detesmining the falr walue of ity financial instruments, the Company uses 3 varkety of methards and sssumptions that sre based an markey conditions snd risks existing at: each
reporting date, The methody pied 1o determing fair value mieludes discounted cavh How anabysiz, avallable geotod market prices and desler guotes. Al methods of assessing Fair valui
ranult from general approsimation of vasue and the same may differ from the actual readzed value.




Cadence Enterprites Private Lirmited
Ground Floor, New Udaan Bhawan, Opposits Terminal-3, (G Alsport, Mlew Delhi 110037
Oz SO0 ORPTCITZLIE

Nates to Francial statements for the year ended Manch 31, 2024
£. Revenue racognition

Rrvisue is recognired 1o the mxient that i o probable et this ecenomic benafits will fow to the Compary and the sevenae can be relialdy mesured, Revenue o messcred at the far
valim of the consideration meeived o receivable, faking mio account contractuaily defined terms of payment. Revenue are stated exclusive of sales tax; viske added tax; goods and
service fax. The foflowing specic racognitior orteria must also be met before revenue i recognized.

mterest ircome s recognned usng the ofecive nterest rate metnod {EIR] ER (5.the rate that exactly dhcounts the sstmaced futurn cash peymients or recalpts over the axpezed
Iife of the linancal Instrument or 3 shorter pericd, where apprepriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financal asset or to the smoried cost of 3 finandal llabilley. Interest
Income i included under the head “Other income” in the statemeant of peoflt and loss:

Devidend Income is recognized when the Company's rght to recesan divedend bs establishad by the reporting date.

Profity |oss:an sale of mutual funds e recognized when tha title to mutual funds ceases 1o axist

d. Tones

Tax expense contps es of currenl Las and deferred tie: Current tax and delferred i are recognised in the Statement of Prafit and Loss except when they relate 1o femsihat a0
recagnised n OC1 or directly in equity, in which case, the current aivd deferred tam are alao recognised in other comprehensve income o direcily o equity, respectively,

Current income bax i messuned ot the amaund axpectsd to be paid 10 Hhe income tax puthorities in acordance with the ncome-tay Act, 1961 enacted in India and tax lees peeuailing
it tha respective tax [uridictions whess the Company ogierases. The tas rates and tas laws usad to compute the amoant are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, a1 the
regarting date.

Defared income tasves refiect the impact of timing Sifferences betwedn txable Income and accounting iooeme originating during the current year and roversal of timing differercos
far the earlier years. Deferred tax is mzasured using the tas rates and the fax laws enaced or substantively enacted at the risgarting deie

Deferred tax Fabdilies are racognized for 3l tazable iming defferences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for @bl deductibbe temiporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax
wreidfits and ary uniused f2o ostes. Defered tan stsets ars recognised to the extent that it i= probabie that taeble profit will be avaitale agains which tha deductible temparary
differences, mid the carry forwasd of unoed t@x credits and uneted fx foises can be Soed.

The egstylag amount of daferred tar assets |5 reviewed at asch reporting date snd reduced to tha estent that it is no longer probable that sufficent taxabla profit will be avatlable to
allow all o piet of the deferred 1o asset to be utilised. Unrecogrlsed defiecr s ae azseds ace re-dasessed 3l sach reportieg date and are recognised to thie estent that it has become
probable that futere tasanls profts will a%ew the defered taz asset to be resovered

Disferred tan asias and deferred tas liabilities 3ie offset IF o legaly enforceabie right eaists 1o set-off current tax 25sets against current tax lahditios and the deferad takes relate to
Ehie same tanahle entiny amid he same tExation autharity,

Minlmurm altermate tas (MAT) paid in & year s charged to thie stetement of grofic and hoss &5 cutrent tex, The Company recognices MAT credit available as an aset only to the setem
that there i ennvincing avidence that the Company will gay noarma income tax duning the specified period, e, the persod For which RIAT cradit is sfiowed 19 be carrind forward, In
the par in which the Company recognizes MAT redit as an assat, the taid asser s created by way of =edit 19 the statemant of profit and loss and shown as “MAT Credit Dntitement.”
The Company meviews the "MAT cradit entithement” asset at cach reparting fate and writes down the ssset 1o the sutent tha Company does not have convincing evidence the it wil
pay narmal tax diering the spedficd pericd

&, Bormowing costs
Borrowing st indudes interest, amortization of anciltary cosss incurred in connection with the arangement of borrawlrgs s0d sxchange differences arising fram foreign currency
bosrengs fo this eutenl they are ﬂ;pl‘]uﬂ a4 mn adjustment i Ehe istenes) st

Borrawing costs directly sttributable to the asquisition, sanssruction or production of an asiet that necsssarily takes & substantial pariod of thme to gt ready for s intended use o
sale are capitalited as part af the cost of the respective asxet. Al other borrawing costs are expemesd in the year they oocur.

T Provisions
A provision is recognized when the Compeny hes o present obligation os o result of past evenl, it & probsbls thet an catflow of resaurces embedying econemic benefits will be
reguired {2 stile the obligation and a reliable exgimate can be made of the amout of the obligation. Wisere the company eaperts same or sl of 3 prowsion te be reimbursed, lor

exaiple urides an insarance contract, the reimboersement s recagnized a8 a separate-assel bist only when the reimbursement is vinustly centaln. The expense ralating to any pravision
Is presented in the statement of profit and loss net ob any reimbursement.

& Contingent abifty and assets

Digctoaures for contingant lisbikty are made when there is a posible snd present cbligation that arisus from pass gvents which is not recognised since it 1 not probaale that there will
b am putflew of resources. Whan there (55 posdhbe snd present obligstion |n respect of which the likelihood of outlive of resourcas b remote, fo daclosurs |5 marke.

Loss contingencies arising fram caims, ligation, assessment. fines, penaltles, 1o sre recorded waen it 1s probabds thar 3 llabilivy has besn incumed and the mount tan be reasanably
wsthmated

Cantirgent sssets @re not secognized |n the fimancial statementy




Cadence Enterprises Privite Limived
Grownd Floar, Wews Udazn Bhawan, Opposite Termisal-3, #31 Alrport, New Oelhi 110037
CIN: US21000LI00RPTCL 72106

Mates o irancial statements for the year ended March 31, 20749
. Financial Insiruments
A financial Inst=ument i any contract that gves rise to.2 finaneia! ssser of ona entity and 3 fimancial llaaility or eguity instrament of ancthar entity,

Fimancis] sasets
Initiad recagnition and measurément

All Financial assely pre recogrised initislly 21 lai valus phas, in the cese of lnancial ssesls sod recarded 8t [air value through profit and loss; transaction costs that #0e atbribuable to
thee arcruisiticn of the fiuancal gaast

Subsequent measirement

For pulposes of subsequent mesuremendt, firancal assets are classified in the befow categories:
(2] Fnancial assets ar amortised cost

|a) Finamcial assets st smortised cast
Fnancial assets are subsequently megtured of amortised cost iF thete financial dssets are held within o Bosiness whese the objective o to hoid these: assets jn arder (o coligct
contractual cash flows and the contraciua! terms of the financial asset give rse on specified dates ta cash fows that are solely paymants of pringipal and interess an the principal

amaunt outstanding

atter initisd maosurement, such finaacial pesets are subsequently memured ot amortiied codt Aing the B method. Amortised cost is caleodated by mking into scooun any discount
or prefmiim on sguistion and Tees of costs that are mn integral par: of the EIR, The IR amirtissticn is incuded In fimanes Income in the Statement of Profi and Lo The lass
artsing from impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. This category generally applies 1o 1 ade and other réceivabies, Inars snd ather financial 25sees

{b] Financial Assets at fair value through other comprehensive ncame [FUTOCH)

FEnancial assats are measured 3t fair value throsgh other comprehensiva Inceme if these financiol assots are held within @ business whose objectve s ochisved by bath colliecing
sontractual cash fows and sellmg finanaasl sasets and the contractual terms of the insncsl sses give rue an specafied dates w cash laws that are soéely pawments of prncigat and
Enrerest o the pringpa| amaunt sutstanding. Derivative instroments inchided in PYTOC catagory are measured initaly as well as ot each reporting date st e value. Movermeist in
fair valise Is remognised in OCL

(el Fenanclal Assits including deduatives at fale valice through profit ar foss [FYTPL)
Financial svets sre measured ot falr value through profit snd lods unhets it 5 messured ot armoriled codt o ot-fair value thiough othes commprehendle Incoma on IRltial recogndtion.
The transact:on costs cirechiy attmbutabde to the acgesit on of Tnancial assats at &ie value theoagh profit @nd loss ae anmegiately recognised in the Statoment of Profit and Loss.

Desecognition

& financial asset |l arimarly devacognised whan:

{al the right to recaiva cash Nows from the asset has expoed, or

(b} the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the recelved cosh flows bn full without material detay 1o 8 third
party undar @ pas-through arrangemant; and a) the Company has ransferrad susstantially all the riks and rewards of the mses, o b the Company hes nesther wanalerred nor
rwiained substansially all the risks wndd rewords of the asaet, but has ransferred contral of the el

i derncognition of & financial saset b its entirety, the differences between the carrying amownts messured at the date ol derecognition snd ihe consldedatlon recelved is recogrised
in the Statement of Profit and Logs.

bmpairment of fnancial asets

The Company applies the expected credil loss (ECL) model lor mesaurerment and récagnition of mpairment losses on the fallovwng finsncisl asseds and eredit risk asposure:

[} Financial asiets that afe mpasored 6l amartaed ool &g trode fecevables

{l] Trisdles receiwabies, sy controctusd fight W receive cash of dny another fnancdl sset thae result from Lransactions that are withen tha scope of ind AS 115
The Comparty follws the ssmplified spproach for recognithon of impasrment loss allowance an trade receivables. The application of the simplitied approach does nat reguirs the
Cornpany to track changes |n credit fisk, Rather, it recogniees impairméent lass allpwanee based on |[fsime ECLs 8t sach reparting date, right from (ts Initlal recogniten.

For recogneson: ol imgairment laid an other financal dsiets and risk esposure, (e Compary delermines whether thére has been g significant ingreass in the credit sk since initial
regagnition, If credit rok has not increased significantly, teelve-month ECL is used to provide for impainmient loss. However, (f credit risk has increased significantly, fetime ECL s
used. ¥ in 8 subiequent perlod, credit guality of the instrument improves such thal there Is i longer o slghificant incrasse in oedit rigk sinee |nitial recegniticn, then the entity reverts
to fecagniting impairmant lois alowance based on twebve-manth BEOL

Lifetime ECL arm the expected oredit iodses resulting from &8 posgible default events over the expected life of 4 financisl instrument. The twelve-month ECL is & portion of the |ferme
ECL which rasults from default evants that are possible within twelve months sfver the reporting dete.

ELL b5 the difference betwern net of all contracnml cash flows that are dus to the Campang In sccordance with the contract and all the cah flaws that the entity expes W receive
[Le; all cash shortfais), discounted at the original £IK.

Wwhen estimating tha cash flows, an antity i5 required 10 consider

= Al eontractual terms of the Rnancal mstrumant (inciding prepaynent, extension, &l dand simile options) oyer the sxpected life of the financial mstrumant. Howaever, in rere case
when the expected life of the financial Instrument cannot be extimiated reiably, then the sntity is required 1o use the remaining contractus!-term of the Anancial instrument

o Cosly Perwes from ke sale oF colfateral hetd or other credit echancements that are integral 1o the contractust terns,

s a practical expedient, the Congany wies a provison matrs to detsrmine impairment low allowancod on trade recebvabls

Thie Company does not kave sny purchased or ofiginated cedit-impaired financial ausets, (e, fnancisl asets which are credin impaired oo purchaseloriginaton,

ECL impasirmisnt ings sflomance [or revemsl) recognized duiing the period |s resagniosd in the Statemam of Profit and Liss, This amount s reffected uades tbe ol “sther exgienses’ in
the Staslement of Froft and Loas




Cadence Enterprises Private Limitet
Bround Floar, Mew Lidsan Bhawan, Opposite Terminal-d, @) Siport, New Delll 110057
Cih: USZ1000L200BPTCITZI1A

Motes to financial statements for the yeor ended Marnch 52, 2024
Fimnncial fatilltiny

Inidal recognition and measurement

Financial liabiiries @ clessifed, 3l inltal recognition, = financial Babilees at tair value through proft or loe (FYTPL), koans and bomrowings, poyables, s appropriste.
Al firanchal Babilities aee recognised inivially at fair value and in the wase of payables, net of directly attributable transaction casts.
The Company's financial liabilities inclide trade and other payables and foans and barrowings.

Subsequent meauremeant

The measuremrent af irancal abilides dnpand_s an their cassification 25 disouizzad below:

Trade and other payables
For trade and other payabiss matufing witlin ane yes llam tha Balance Sheet date, the earrying amaunts aporewimate Tar value i3 used due 1o the short maturity of these

RN,

Laans and borrowings

after initial racognition, interest-bearing loans and berrowings are whsequently meatursd st amortised cosk wing the B melbod Gons and losses arz recognised i profit or bess
when the liabilities sre dorecognised as woll a5 through the FIR amortsation process, Amortised cost s calculated by taking into scount any disctam of premdum on ssquitition and
Fess or oosts that are an integral part of the EPL The ZIR amortisation i included 2 finance costs in the ssatement of profit and loss. This citegory genesally sppiias to barmowings.

Derecognition
& financial [ability 16 derecognized when the obligation undar the. liabibty & dischanged ar rancalled or explred, Whan an exigting financal kability |= replaced by anather fram the

pame bnnder on substantially different tarms, or tha terms of an exiting liability are substantiaily madified, such an exchange or modification s trostad a5 the derecogirion wl the
origmal lishility and the recognition of 2 new labiity: The diferaroe in the respectve @mang amounts & recogrisad in the Staternent of Profit snd Loss,

Offietting of francial instruments
Financial pssets znd finsncial Galllltisg are effust and the nel-amount 18 reperted in the balance shept IF thare is a cummently enforcoable kegat rght o offset the recogntsed amounts
and there (8 an intention (o sefthe on @ net Bass, Do replse e essets and settle tha labditios smultaneouasly

i Cash and Cash eguivalents

Cashy and cash equivalents include cash at nank and deposits with banks having maturity of thres mpoths or iess, The bank deaostts with original maturity of up to thres months ane
classified &4 canh and cash equivalants and bank deposits with original matudity of mare than thrae months are dassified as other bank balances

|- Stmtement al Cash Flow

The Ststement of Cash Flow is reported wsing the indirect method, whereby the net profit before tas s adjusted for the effects of transactions of @ non-cagh nature, any deferrals or

accruals of past or future spersting cash receipts or pavments and. item of income of axpenses assoclated with invisting or financing cash flows. The Statemaent of Cash fows from
operatng investing and financing activites of the Company are segregated

X Sl,p'lihl'lt accounting judgmonts, estimates snd assumptions.
The preparation of financial statements in conformity wish Ind AS reguires T nt to make extimates and assirmpdions that aHedt the repoctied amaunta of (edenis, eapanses,

Assets and Rabifities. Actuad results coufd differ from those sstimates, Aay reyision bo accounting estirmates is recognised prospectively,

The key assamptions concerming the futdre and other key sources of estimating uncertsinty- 21 the reparting date, that nave g significant risk of causing @ matennl adjustmaent 1o the
carrpng amounts of sisets snd llubilites within the nest Ananclal yeer, sre desoribed Below, Tha Company has based (s sssumptions and estmates on paramatess @villable when the
financial statements were grepared. Existing droamstances and esimptions about future developments, howsyer, may change tue 1o Maret changes o droumstances @isng that
arg bevond the control of the Company. Sich changas are seflected In the asumptions when they decur.

231 impairmont of financial sssets

The Company assesses impalrmant an fmanclal assets based on Expected Credit Loss [CCL| model The provision matrix 14 based on iz hinorically observed default rates over the
expected life of the financial ssmets snd s adjusted for forward [ooking estimates. At every reporting date, the bistorsosl observied default rates ae cpdated and changes in forward
Inpking astimatos are apalysed.

1.3.2 Golng Concern

The financial statements al the Company have beedn prepared on the basis that the Company is 3 going concarn as the company has ability to continue 24 & going toncem




Cadence Enterprises Private Limited

Ground Floor, New Udaan Bhawan, Opposite Terminal-3, 1GI Airport, New Delhi 110037
CIM: U521000L2008PTCLT2118

Motes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

{ Rs. In Lakhs)
Note 3 - Property, Plant & Equipments
Reconciliation of Carrying Amount Land Building Total
Gross block
As at April 01, 2022 . . -
Additions 188,55 388,55
Disposals - . -
At March 31, 2023 - 3B8.55 3BE.55
Gross block
As at April 01, 2023 - 3IBE.55 388.55
Additions 10.31 15.95 56.26
Disposals - . -
At March 31, 2024 10.31 434.50 444.81
Depreciation
At april 01, 2022 - . -
Charge for the year - 0.04 0.0
Disposals . *
At March 31, 2023 - 0.04 0.04
At April 01, 2023 - 0.04 .04
Charge far the year - 13.24 13,24
Disposals * = -
At March 31, 2024 = 13.28 13.28
Met block as at March 31, 2023 - 388.52 31EB8.52
MNet block as at March 31, 2024 10.31 q421.22 431.53
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Cadence Enterprises Private Limited
Ground Floor, New Udaan Bhawar, Opposite Terminal-3, 1GI Airport, New Delhl 110037
CIN: USZI000LZ008PTCIT2118

Motes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

( Rs. In Lakhs)
Mote B - Other Current Assets 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Advance income tax [Net of Provision for Taxation) 1.28 122.60
Other Advances .00 0.25
128 132,85
Allowance for doubtful advances - -
1.28 122.85
Total 1.28 122.85
Note:
Other advances due by directors or other officers, eic.
= Non=current - -
= Current - -
Break up of financial assets carried at amortised cost
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Mon - current =
Current
Cash and cash equivalent {Refer note 7) 18.87 7.60
18.87 7.60
Total 18.87 7.60




Cadence Enterprises Private Limited

Ground Floor, New Udaan Bhawan, Opposite Terminal-3, iGl Anpaort, New Delhi 110037

CIN; Lo2 1000 2008PTC172118

Notes ta financial statements far the year anded March 31, 2024

{ Rs. bn Lakhs)
Mate 9 - Share Capital 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
{No. of Shares) Rs. Lakhs {Mo, of Shares) Rs. Lakhs
Authorized shares
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 Each 10.000 100 10,000 1.00
10,000 1.00 10,000 1.00
Mote 3A - lssued share capital
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 Each
- Equity shares 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
[No. of Shares) Rs. Lakhs {No. of Shares) Rs. Lakhs
At the beginning of the vear 10,000 100 10,000 1.00
Issued during the year - - - -
Curtstanding at the end of the year 10,000 1.00 10,000 1.00

Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

The company has only one diass of equity shares having 4 par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of these shares are entitled to receive
dividends as and when declared by the company subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Mesting. Each

holder shall bave votlng rights in proportion Lo the their paid up equity share capitzal.

In the event of liguidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled 1o receive remalning asséts of the Company, after
distribution of sl preferential amaounts. The distribution will be in proportionate to the number of equity shares held by the sharehalders.

Note 9B- Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
MNas. % of Holding Nos. % of Holding
shares of each fu i
GMR Enterprises Private Limited 8,959 09.99% 0.909 ga99%
59,999 93.99% 9,999 99.99%
Note 9 C- Details of promoter shareholding
Promoter Name Mo. of sharesat  Change during  No of shares at % of total % change during
the baginning of thie year the end of the shares the yaar
the year year
31-Mar-24
GMR Enterprises Private limited 9,595 9,995 99.99% -
1 1 .00% -
M, M.V, Srinivas (Nomines GMR Enterprises Private Limited)
31-Mar-23
GMR Enterprises Private limted 5959 = 9,994 99.99% =
1 | 0.00% .
e, MUY Srinlvas {Mormines GMWMR Enterprises Private Limited)
Mote 10 - Other Equity 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Retainad Earnings / Surplus in the statemant of profit and foss
Balance as per last financial statements {79.27) (27.43)
Profit for the year (251.87) {51.84)
Total Retained Profits/ Losses [331.14) {19.27)
Dther comprehensive income - -
Other Reserves - -
Total (331.14) {19.27)
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Cadence Enterprises Private Limited
Ground Floor, Naw Udaan Bhawan, Opposite Terminal-3, 1G1 Alrport, New Deathl 110037
CIN: US21000DL2008PTC172118

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

| Rs. In Lakhs)
Mote 14 - Revenue from Operations 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Revenue from operations

Operational Revenue - -
Total = =
Mote 15 - Other Income 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Interest income on Financial assets carried at amortised cost

Loans given 4588.19 1,176.00
Other non operating income

Income from Commission 102 96 100.00

Interast on IT Refund 191 -
Total 4,693.06 1,276.00
Mate 16 - Finance cost 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Interest on:

Loans 4,892.20 1,180.34
Bank Charges 0.0a 5.04
Other Finance Charges - 125.00
Total 4,892.24 1,310.38
Note 17 - Other expences 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Annual Custody Fees 1.50 0.76
Listing Feas 0.65 1.30
Maintenance Charges 177 0.88
Ratesy & Tanes - G5T 0.45 284
Rates & Taxes - ROC fes 1.18 255
Certification Charges 0.41 0.45
Consultancy and Professional Charges 3.29 5.57
Demat charges 011 .
Other expenses 0.08 ool
Audit Fees 1.25 0.20
Registration & Membership Fees .14 .
Advertiseament Expensaes .88 0.24
Trustes Charges 1.48 2.60
Total 13.19 17.42
Payment to auditor 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
As auditor:

Audit fee 1.25 0.20
Tax audit fess 3 3
Other Services - -
1.25 0.20

o 54,
Vijparaghnva

D oad, Thagar,
Chignnn - &




Cadence Enterprises Private Limited
Ground Floor, New Udaan Bhawan, Opposite Terminal-3, IGI Airport, New Delhi 110037
CIN: US2100DL2008PTC172118

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
{ Rs. In Lakhs)
18 Earnings per share (EPS)

a) Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

b) Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the parent (after adjusting for interest on

the convertible preference shares) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted
average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares.

c) The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

For the year ended For the year ended

Mar 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Profit attributable to the equity holders of the company {251.87) (51.84)

Profit attributable to the equity holders of the parent (251.87) {51.84)

Weighted average number of equity shares used for computing Earning per 10,000 10,000
share (Basic and diluted)

10,000 10,000

Earning per share (Basic) (Rs.Ps) (2,518.71) (518.43)

Earning per share (Diluted) (Rs.Ps) (2,51B.71) (518.43)

Face value per share (Rs.Ps) 10.00 10.00
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Cadence Enterprises Private Limited
Ground Floor, New Udaan Bhawan, Opposite Terminal-3, |Gl Airport, New Delhi 110037
CIN: US2100DL2008PTC172118

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

{ Rs. In Lakhs)

Capital Commitments

31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for (net of advances) - -
Uncalled liability on shares and other investments partly paid -
Contingent Liabilities

31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Contingent Liabilities [not provided for) in respect of
Clalms against the company not acknowledged as debt; . =
Other money for which the company Is contingently liable. -
Trade Receivables 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person,
Nor any trade or other recelvable are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a direclar or a member,
Trade receivables are non-Interest bearing, if any.

Segment Information

The campany is engaged primarlly in the business of sale and purchase ot all goods & services etc., Considering this the company has only one business / geographical
segments as per Ind A5 108 "Operating segment”,

The company does not have any employees on Its rolls during the period covered in financials and hence no provision |s made for retirement benefits,
The company does not have any Lease transaction reportable under tnd AS 116.

The company does not have any Investment Property reportable under ind AS 40.

No Foreign Currency Transaction happened during the periods covered under financials thus no foreign exchange difference arise.

Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position as on March 31, 2024.




Cadents Enterpritas Private Limited
Grourd Floor, Mew Udaan Bhaws, Opposils Terminiil 5, G Grpert, New Deli 110007
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Maibes e Financial satensnds Far the yeur emded March 51, 2004
TR Felated party transactions
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Halding comgany MR Erdurprise Pyl Lid.
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ML Kfvmboo Praysd, Sorrung Secrebery Aeaigned tr Btk fug 7073
My Agay Kumar Mohanty, Company Seoratary  Appointed am Sth fug' 1020
My, Maewen Kumar erema, CFO Appointed on 10t Moy 03T
L8 i L)
Partinatars Hpiding Company Fieflerm sastiiicinries Company Jaint Ventaros Tidnl
11 Mar 24 2-Maraa [T 1l-Marda 3nMar 24 11-Mur-21
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Cadence Enterprises Private Limitod
Ground Floor, New Udaan Bhawan, Opposite Tesminal-3, 1G] Mrport, New Dislkl 110037
CIN: LIS21000L200BPTCITILIA

Motes to financial statemants for the year ended March 31, 2024

| s b Lk
Falr Values

A Actounting classification and fair values
Lt nut beiow, = & comparison by dan of the errying amounts and fair value of the company’s Brandal intrements.

{ Carrying valve | [ Fal value |
31 -Mar 24 31-Mar- 23 41 Mar-24 Al-Mar-23
Firancial aviety
I hlesusred ot i wslue thoough Profif or Loss [FVTPL)
{a] Freestmanty 5600 W00 600 .00
Semured ot @mortieed (oot
Lopm 14,795 .00 MIATS.00 14,7900 a2 rs 00
Other fenancsl AMseti 575505 113752 5. 756.05 L5
Cash and cash eguivalent 1LET 760 187 780
Total ¢+ ) S 7T T T — 1Y
FHrancial labilities
teaiured #t amorised coet
(&) Botrowing 1138743 26,172.50 1138749 26,172.90
(B} Trade payabies - . z 5
(€] O financisl latlieties 1428 .96 Ja.44 n56
Total 71,411,894 26,194 86 21411 58 26,194 86

The carrying amount of finencal instruments such @5 cash & cazh eguivalenss and borrowings end other financial labilives sie consldered to e seme & their falr value due o thelr
AP TE DR AL e

Thiie fialr values of financlal assets and financial ablities recorded bn the balanes sheet in respect of whien quoted priees In sctve matkets ore svallsble sre measured using valuation
achnlgues, It any,

B, Fair Value Hieranchy
Thie following table provides talr value measurement hierarchy of firandal instrurments a8 eefartad in note (4] above:

Chaaniiative dischodures falv valus measurement hieraichy

Year Ll 1 Lirvarl 2 Lawel 3 Tatal
Financisl assety
3i-Mar-24 96.00 . - 96.00
31-Mar-23 96,00 . - 56.00

Theve keve boen no transbers Level 1 and Level 7 durimg the petiod.
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Cadenca Enterprises Private Limitzd
Ground Floor, Naw Udaan Bhawan, Opposite Terminal-3, 1G] Airpart, ivew Dethl 110037
ON: LS00 2008PTCL7Z1IE

Motes ta financlal staterments Tor the year ended March 31, 2024
{ Rm. In Lakhs)

Capital managemant

For this purpese of the Company’s caplial managemynt, the capital includes issund equity capital, and other egquily reserves atiributable 1o the eguity
hoagers of the Company, The primary objective of the company's capital management & to maximisa the- sharehoider valos,

The Eompary manages its capital structure and makes agjustment in light of changes In economic canditions and the reguirements of financial
covenants. To mairtain and adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capétal to shareholders
o [ssue new shares, The Company monitars capital using a gearing ratho, which is a net deht divided by total capital plies net detr. The Compamy’s policy
Is 15 keep Lhe gearing ratio at an opbimum level. The Company includes within et debt interest bearing loans ond borrowings, trade snd other payables,
Irss cash and cash equivaients.

31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Barrwings 21,3674 26,172.90
Total Debt | 4] 1138749 2617290
Equity 100 1.00
Cthr Equity (331,94 (72,27
Total Equity [ B) [330.14) {78.27)
Total equity and tetal debt | C= Aeg) [21,717.63) (26,251.17|
Gaaring ratio % | AC) SE.48K: 99 F0%

Financlal risk management objectives and policies

The Caompany’s principal firancial labilities, other than dervatves, camprice (oass and borrowings, trade and ather payabiss, The main purpose of theds
financial [abslitios i to fnence the Company's operations and to provide guaranbees 1o support its tperatiang, The Company s principal financisl assets
ineluds investmants, ather fecalvables, cash and cach aguivalents that derea directly Fram its operationg.,

Thix Company 1s esposed to market sk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's senior msanagrrment gversees the managemant of these risks. The
Company's senior management |1 supported by a risk management team that advisas on financial fsks and the appropriata financial risk governance
framework for the Company. The risk management team ensures that the Company's financizl sctivibes are governed by aporopniste poiioes: snd
procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company s pofides and risk objectives. All derarive
activities for risk management purpoges are carred sur by teams that have the appropriate skills, experience and supervizion. It i the Company's palicy
that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes may be undertakesn, The Board of Cirectors reviews and agraes policies for managing each of these
risks, which are summarised as below.
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Cadence Enterprises Private Limited
Grownd Fipor, New Udaan Bhawan, Opposite Terminal-3, 1G] Adrport, New Delhi 110037
CiM: U521000L 2008PTC17 2118

Notes ta financial statements for the year anded March 31, 2024 | Rs. In Lakhs)

31 Under the Micre, Small and Medium Enterprises Developmaent Act, 2008, {MSMED)] which came into force from 2 Octobar
2006, certain disclosure are required to be made refating o Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises. On the basis of the
information and records available with the management, there are no gutstanding dues to the Micre, Small and Medium
Enterprises development Act, 2006, Disclosure as per Section 22 of "The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development
Act, 2006 (as certified by the management),

Particulars 31-Mar-2d 31-Mar-23
The Princlpal amount ard Interest due thereon remaining unpaid
to amy supplier
- Principal Amsount NIl M
- Interest thereon il il
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16,
along with the amounts af the payment made to the suppler Wil puil

beyond the appointed day,

The amount of interest due and payable for the year of delay in
making payment (which have been pald but beyond the

appolnted day during the year) but withaut adding the Interest il il
specified under this Act.
The amount of interest accrued and remalning unpaid Nil il

The amount of further inkerest remalining due and payable in the
succeading year till the date of finalization of financial statements il il




Cadence Enterprises Private Limited
Ground Floor, New Udaan Bhawan, Opposite Terminal-3, |GI Alrport, New Delhi 110037
CIN: US2I00DL2008PTC172118

Motes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 [ Rs. In Lakhs)

Previous year figures have been regrouped and reclassified, wherever necessary, to conform to those

32
of the current year.

As per our report of even date attached

for B. Purushottam & Co For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Cadence Enterprises Private Limited
Firm Registration Number - 0028085

Tl | Jos

A}

B. Mahidhar Krrishna Ravi Majeti P.V.Subba Rao
Partner . Director Director
Membership No.243632 i I DIN: 07106220 DIN: 03634510
Fimp laa s
.:l'i"‘"\‘ 'ffa',.f-'""..- @-‘\ﬂ_—‘
\5
a
Maveen Kumar Verma Ajay Kumar Mohanty
Place : New Delhi Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Date : 23rd May'2024 M.No. FC5-7133
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Tathe Members of Cadence Enterprises Private Limited
Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Cadence Enterprizes Private
Limited { the “Company”) and its subsidiary ({the Company and its subsidiary together referred to as
“the Group"), which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024, and the
Consolidated statement of Profit and Loss (including Gther Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consalidated Cash Flows Statement for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policles and other explanatory information (herelnafter referred to as “the consolidated financial
statemenis™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act , 2013
(the “Act”) In the manner so required and give a trug and fair view In confarmity with the Indian
Accounting Standards ("ind AS™) prescribed under section 133 of the act read with Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended and other accounting principles generally acceptedin
India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2024, of consolldated loss,
consolidated total comprehensive 10ss, consolidated changes in equity and its consolidated cash flows
for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinlon

We conducted our audit of consolidated financial statements In accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (“SA's) specified under section 143{10) of the Companies act, 2013. Our responsibilities under
those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financlal Statements section of our report. We are Independent of the Group in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl), together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of consolidated financial statements under the provisions of
the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities In
accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Cade of Ethics. We belleve that the audit evidence
ohtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the consolidated
financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, In our professional jJudgment and based cn the consideration
of the reponts of the other auditors on separate financial staterments of the subsidiary, were of most
slgnificance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit financial statements as a whole and In forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined that there are
no key audit matters to communicate in our report.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Holding Company's Board of Directors and the Management are responsible for the other
Information. The other information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion
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and Analysis, Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Report and Shareholder's Information, but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other infarmation and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements, or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears 1o be materially misstated. i, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there |5 a materlal misstatement of this ather information, we are required to report that fact,

When we read these reports, If we conclude that there 5 a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Board of Directors and the Management's Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial
Statemants

The Holding Company's Board of Directors and the Management are responsible for the matters stated
in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation and presentation of these consolidated
financial staternents that give a true and falr view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated
financlal performance including other comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and
consolidated cash flows of the Group In accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting princlples
generally accepted in India. The Holding Company's Board of Directors are also responsible for ensuring
accuracy of records Including financial Intormation considered necessary for the preparation of
consolidated Ind AS financial statements. The respective Boards of Direclors and the Managements of
the companies Included in the Group are respansible for maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act far safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant o the
preparation and presentation of the financfal statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Board of Directors of the HoldIng Company,
as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Boards of Directors and the
Managements of the companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the
respective entities to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concemn and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the respective Boards of Directors
elther Intend to liguidate thelr respective entities or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The respective Boards of Directors and the Management of the companies Included In the Group are
also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group.
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Auditor's Responsibilities forthe Audit of the Consolldated Financial Statements

Our cbjectives are 1o obtain reasgnable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditer's repart that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance IS a high level of assurance but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
Individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expectad to Influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and mainiain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also!

=« |dentify and assess the risks of material misstaterment of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that (s sufficlent and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a materal misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may Involve collusion, forgery, Intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control,

« Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143{3)() of the Act, we are
dlso responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company and its subsidiary companies
which companies are incorporated in India, has adequate internal financial controls system In
place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accaunting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management,

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertalnty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt en the ability of the Group to continue as a going
concern. if we conclude that a materlal uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are Inadequate, 1o modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a gning concem.

=« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

« Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supemvision and performance of the audit of the financial statements
of such entities included in the consclidated financial statements of which we are the independent
auditors.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the consolidated fInancial statements may be Influenced, We consider quantitative materiality and d
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audlt work and In evaluating the results of our wor .5-21“‘

and (i) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements In the consolidated financial statements/ =/ sgraa
O s Thagar
o3 \Cheenn - 60017 _
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We communicate with thase charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities
included in the conselidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding,
among other matters, the plannad scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, Including
any significant deficiencies In internal control that we identity during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical reguirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determing those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters In our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest bensefits of such
communication.

Other Matters

The consolidated financial statemenis include the audited financial statements of one subsldiary
whose financials statements reflects the Group's share of total assets (before consolidation
adjustments) of INR 0.57 lakhs as at 31 March 2024, the Group's share of total revenue Is NIL, Group's
share of total net loss and total comprehensive loss of INR 72.65 lakhs and Group's share of net cash
outflow of INR 0.44 takhs for the year ended un that date as considered in the consolidated financial
results, which has been audited by another auditer, The independent auditor's report on financial
statements of this entity have been furnished to us by the management. Our opinion on the
consolidated annual financial results, In so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in
respect of this entity, is based solely on the report of such auditors and the procedures performed by us
are as stated in paragraph above.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matter with respect to our reliance on the
work done and the report of the ather auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asreguired by Section 143{3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, as required by Section
143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of the other auditors on
separate financial statements of a subsidiany:

a) We have sought and obiained all the informatiom and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesald
consolidated financial statements.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
atoresald consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books.

c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (Including
Cther Comprehensive Loss), Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Consalidated Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements.

Vijayarnghgvs

Resd, T Mazar,
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d} In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the [nd AS
specified under section 133 of the Act.

g) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding
Company and the reports of the statutory auditor of the subsidiary company, none of the
directors of the Group companies incorporated In Indla are disqualified as on 31 March 2024
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act

fi  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reponting of the
Holding Company and the subsidiary and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer o
our separate Report in “Annexure B". Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the
adequacy and operating effectiveness of internal financial controls over financial reporting of
those companies, forthe reasons stated therein,

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinfon and to the best of our infermation and according to the explanations given to us,
no remuneration was pald by the Holding Company or its subsidiary to its directors during the

year,

h) With respect to the other matters to be Included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to
the best of our Information and according to the explanations given to us:

i) The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the
consolidated financlal position of the Group. Refer note no 27 to the consolidated financial
statements.

[l The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts.

iiij There has been no delay in transferring amounts, which were required to be transferred, 1o
the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company and Its subsidiary company
incorporated in India.

iv. {a) The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary have
represented to us and the auditor of the subsidiary company, to the best of its knowledge
and belief, that no funds {which are material either individually or in aggregate), other
than those disclosed in note 5 to the financial statements, have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other saurces or
kind of funds) by the Company or its subsidiary company to or in any other person ar
entity, Including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded inwriting or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether directly or indirectly
lend or Invest In ather persons or entities identified In any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Company or its subsidiary company {*Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneflciaries,

{b] The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary have
represented to us and the auditor of the subsidiary company, to the best of its
knowledge and bellef, that no funds {which are material either individually or in
aggregate), other than those disclosed in note 11 to the financial statements, have be
received by the Company or Its subsidiary from any person or entity, including for
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entity [“Funding Partles”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwlse, that the Company or its subsidiary shall, whether directly orindirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities Identified In any mannear whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) ar provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Uitimate Beneficiaries;

{t) Basedonthe audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to helieve that
the representations under sub-clause (1) and (I} of Rule 11(e), as provided under [a) and
(b) above, contain any material misstatement.

v. The Holding Company or its subsidiary did not propose, declare or pay dividends during the
year ended 31 March 2024,

v. Based on our examination, which included test checks and that performed by the auditor of
the subsidiary company incorporated in India, the Holding Company and its subsidiary have
used an accounting software for maintaining its books of accounts for the period ended 31
March 2024, which has a feature of recording audit trail {edit log) facility and the same has
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further,
during the course of the audit we and the auditor of the subsidlary company, did not come
across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with,

As proviso to Rule 3{1) of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from 01 April
2023, reporting under rule Rula 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on
preservation of audit trall as per the statutory requirements for record retention is not
applicable for the financial year ended 31 March 2024,

2. With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3{xxi) and 4 of the Companies (Auditor's
Report) Order, 2020 (the “Order”/“CARO™) issued by the Central Government in terms of Section
143(11) of the Act, to be included in the Auditor’s report, according to the information and
explanations given to us, and based on the CARO reports issued by us for the Company and its
subsidiary included In the consolidated financial statements of the Company, to which reporting
under CARO is applicable, we report that there are no qualifications or adverse remarks in these
CARO reports.

for B. Purushottam & Co.
Chartered Accountants

ot

B Mahidhar Krrishna
Partner

Membership No. 243632
UDIN: 24243632BKCOGNI013

Place: Chennai
Date:23 May 2024
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Annexure "A" to the Independent Auditor’s Re port

List of entities included in the Consolidated Financial Statements

S.no. Name Relatlon
1 Cadence Enterprises Private Limited Holding Company
2 Salvia Real Estates Private Limited (w.e.f. April 01, 2022) Subsidiary Company
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Annexure B: Independent Auditors’ Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to the
financial statements under clause (i) of sub-section (3) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
[“the Act”)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financlal Reporting under Clause (1) of Subsection 3
of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

In conjunction with cur audit of the conseolidated financial statements ol Cadence Enterprises Private
Limited (hereinafter referred to as ‘Holding Company'} and its subsidiary (the Holding Company and its
subsidiary collectively referred to as 'the Group') for the year ended 31 March 2024, we have audited the
internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to financial statements of the Holding
Company and its subsidiary company, which are incorporated in India, as of that date.

Board of Directors and the Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors and the Managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary
Company, which are companies Incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by
the respective Companies considering the essential components of [nternal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (“the ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinien on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Holding Company and its subsidiary company, which are companies incorporated in India, based an
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Mote on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, Including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the Company and
its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India.

Vaperoghaw

Foad, TNagat




B. Purushottam & Co.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's intemal financial contrel over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for extemnal purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, A
company’s Internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that.

(1) pertains to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company.,

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statememts (n accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that recelpts and expenditures of the company are being made only In
accordance with authorlsations of management and directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements.

inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of intemnal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control over financial reporting may become Inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion and based on the considerations of the reports of the other auditor on internal financial
controls with reference to the financial statements of the subsidiary company, which are companies
incorporated in India, have, in all materal respects, an adeguate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such Internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31 March 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting eriteria
established by the respective companies considering the essentlal components of intemal control
stated In the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Indla.

Other Matter

We did not audit the Internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of one subsidiary
whose financials statements reflects the Group's share of total assets (before consolidation
adjustments) of INR 0.57 lakhs as at 31 March 2024, the Group's share of total revenue is NIL, Group's
share of total net loss and total comprehensive loss of INR 72,85 lakhs and Group's share of net cash
outflow of INR 0.44 lakhs for the year ended 31 March 2024, as considerad in the consolidated financial
statements.

‘Wimyttagha

R, T Magar
Cehannai - 500 09




B. Purushottam & Co.

The internal financial controls with reference to financial statements In so far as it relates to the
subsidiary company has been audited by other auditors whose reports have been fumished to us by the
management and our report on the adeguacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial
caontrols with reference to financial statements for the Holding Company and its subsidiary company as
aforesaid, under Section 143(3)(1) of the Act In so far as It relates to such subsidiary company Is based
solely on the reports of the auditors of such companies. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this
matter with respect to our reliance on the work done by and on the reports of the other auditors.

for B. Purushottam & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Viysparaghan
Raad, THagesr, "

B Mahidhar Krrishna
Partner

Membership No. 243632

LIDIN: 24243632BKCOGNS013

Place; Chennal
Date:23 May 2024



Cadence Enterprises Private Limited

Groeund Fioor, New Udaan Bhawan, Opposite Terminal-3, IG! Airport, New Delhi 110037

CIN: WS21000L2008PTCLTZ11E

Consolidated Balance Sheer as at March 31, 2024

[ Rs. Im Lakhs)
Notes As at As at
Particuial
& March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
I.  Assets
(1] WNon-current assets
Froperty, plant & equipment 3 431.53 388.52
Goodwill on consolidation 4 2836 78.36
Financial assets
Loans 5 14,799.00 24, 275.00
Other financial assets [ 5,756.05 1,309.03
{2] Current assets
Financial assets
Cash and cash eguivalents 7 1944 .61
Other ciirrent assets 2 1.28 122.85
TOTAL ASSETS 21,035.66 76,132.37
Il. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity share capital 9 100 1,00
Dther aquity 10 [204.50) [79.58)
TOTAL EQUITY (403.50) {78.98)
LIABILITIES
(1) Non-current liabifities
Financial Liabilities
Horrowings 11 13,147.76 17,945.24
13.147.76 17.985.24
{2} Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Current Barrowings 11 8,244.75 8,192,566
Dther financial labllities 12 2556 2216
Other llabilites 13 21.09 1123
B,291.40 B.226.11
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 11,035.66 26,132.37
Summary of significant accounting palicies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our repart of even date attached
for B, Purushottam & Co

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number - 0028085

B. Mahidhar Krrishna

Partner
Membership No. 243632
| Aggyaeaghae
fis) Fa‘ﬂj J&”-
Chgningl -
Placz : Naw Dethi

Cate : 23 May' 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Cadence Enterprises Private Limited

-J,FMW’ ;."..‘*"""-

Navesn Kumar Verma
Chief Finpncil OFficer

Ravi Majeti
Director
DIN: 07106220

g

Priss

#

P.V.Subba Rsa
Director
DiN: 03634510

O
Ajay Kumar Mohanty

Company Secretary
M.No. FC5-7133



Cadence Enterprises Private Limited
Graund Floor, New Udaan Bhawan, Oppesite Terminal-3, 1G] Alrport, New Belhl 110037
CIl: US21000L2008PTC172118

Consolidated Statement of profit and loss for the vear ended March 31, 2024

| Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars Notes For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
1 Revenue from operations 14 - .
It Other income 15 4,693,068 1,276.00
i Total iIncome (I + 1) 4,693.06 1,276.00
IV  Expenses
Depreciation and amortisation expense 13.24 .oa
Finance costs 16 4,892.72 1,310,653
Other expenses 17 85.36 17.87
Total expenses (IV) 4,991.32 1,328.56
¥ Profit before Tax (1Y) (298.26) {52.56)
VI Tax expense:
Current tax 26,28
Eariler year tax
Deferred Tax - -
Vil Profit for the period [V - V1) (324,52} {52.56)
Vill Other comprehensive income
[terns that will not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequient - -
periods:
Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss in subssquent pariods: =
Tases on abowve Items = =
Dther comprehensive income for the year, net of tax = =
Total comprehensive income for the period, net of tax [VI+VIIT) (324.52) (52.56)
Earnings per eguity share:
Basic & Diluted [ Rs.Ps) 18 (3,245.18) (525.564)
summary of significant accaunting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statemeants.

As per our report of even date attached
for B. Purushottam & Co

Charterad Accountants

Firm Registration Number - 0028085

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Cadence Enterprises Private Limited

Jbe

B. Mahidhar Krrishna P.V.5ubba Rao
FPartner Director
Membership No,243632 DIN; 03634510

Maveen Kumar Verma
Chief Financial Officer

Place : New Delhi
Date ; 23 May'2024

v

Ajay Kumar Mohanty
Company Secretary

M.No, FC5-7133



Cadence Enterprises Private Limited
Grourd Floor, New Udaan Bhawan, Dppasite Terminal-2, |G Alrport, New Delhi 110037
CIh: WS210C0L2008PTCL7211E

Consolidated statement of Cash flow for the year ended March 31, 2024

| Rs. In Lakhs)
March 31, 2024
Cash flow from operating activities
Prafit befora tax {258.26)
Adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash fows
Interest Expenses 4,892.68
Operating profit/ {loss) before working capital changes 4,594.42
Movement in working capital:
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Current assets 0.25
{Increase}/Decrease in Other Mon Current assets [4,447.02)
Increase/|Derrease) in Current Ananclal Gability 341
Increase/|Decrease) In Other Current ability 8.79
Cash generated from/ {used in] operations 160.84
Direct taxes pald [net of refunds) 95.06
MNet cash flow from operating activities (A) 255.90
Cash flow from investing activities
Sale of Investments !
Froceeds In Fized Assets [43.01)
Net Cash flow used in investing activities (B] (43.01)
Cash flow from Financing Activities
Interest pald [4,892.68)
Loan [Return/Given) 5,476.00
Loan [repaid)/ avalled {4,785.38)
Net Cash flow used In financing activities (C ) {202.06)
Net increase/ [decrease) in cash and cash equivalents |A+B4C) 10.83
Cash and cash equivalants at beginning of the year 8.61
Cash and cash eguivalents at the end of the year 19.44
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Balance with banks
- @M CUrremnl acoounts 19.44
- gn deposit acoounts
- Cash an hand -
Total cash and cash equivalents {Note 7) 19.44

The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method' as set out In Ind AS 7, 'Statement of Cash
Flows'.

Since the Company did not have any subsidiaries as of March'2022, thus the comparative cash flow statement for the year ended
31st March'2023 is not applicable and not presented.

Ag per our repart of even date attached For and an behalf of the Board of Birectors of
for B. Purushottam & Co Cadence Enterprises Private Limited
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number - D028085

ora—

3
B. Mahidhar Krrichna Ravi Majeti PV .Subba Rao
Pariner Director Director
Membership No.243632 DIN: uf{Eﬁzz DIN: 03634510
' = o
-
,_.--"""r-.'
Place : New Delhi Navecn Kumar Verma Ajay Kumar Mohanty
Date : 23 May' 2024 cnief Finarcial Officer Company Secretary

M.No. FC5-7133



Cadence Enterprises Private Limited
Ground Floor, New Udaan Bhawan, Oppesite Terminal-3, 1G| Alrpart, New Delhl 110037
CIN: U52100DL2008PTC172118

Consolidated Statement of changes In equity for the year ended March 31, 2024

{ Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars Equity Share Capital | Retained sarnings | Other comprehensive Total
[Note 9) (Note 10) income
{Mote 10)

Balance as at March 31, 2022 1.00 (27.42) - (26.42)
Add/Less :Change in policies and correction of - - .
errors
Restated Balance as at April 1, 2022 1.00 (27.42) . (26.42)
Profit for the year = [52.56) (52.56)
Other comprehensive income - .
Balance as at March 31, 2023 1.00 [79.98) . (78.98)
Add/Less :Change In policies and correction of . . . .
arrors
Restated Balance as at April 1, 2023 1.00 [79.98) - (78.58)
Profit for the year (324.52) (324.57)
Other comprehensive income - -
Issue of Share Capltal - -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 1.00 (404.50) . (403.50)

Accompanyling notes form integral part of the financial statement.

A par our report of even date attached
for B. Purushottam & Co

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number - D028085

ot

B. Mahldhar Krrishna
Partner
Membership No. 243632

Place : Naw Delhi
Cate © 23 May' 2024

“ar and on behall of the Board of Directors of

Cadence Enterprises Private Limited

Ravi Majetl
Director
DM

Q@.r—” Cep™

Naveen Kumar Verma
Chief Financial Officer

-

PV .Subba Rao
Director

DIN: 03634510

Cim_

Ajay Kumar Mohanty
Company Secretary
M.No. FCS-7133




Cadence Entenprises Private Limited
Grownd Fioor, New Udsan Bhawan, Dpposite Terminal-3, 1G] Alrport, New Deil 110037
CIn: US2100DL20OBPTCLTILLE
Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year anded harch 31, 2074
1. Coiporate information
Cagence Enberprises Private Limded [referred 1o a5 “The Company’| domiclles in India and incofporated under the providion of the Comasdies Act, 1956, The Company was
mcorporated on 15t ban'1008. The company 1 e the busineas of dealing m, sald,purchase smport distribute ail goods and services and to sstabiich and run shops, busineds centres,
restaurants and shogping comploxes . Cadence Enterprises Private Umited i 2 subgidiary comganry of GMR Enterprises Frivais Limited
Thi fimancial statemants weee authorised fod |ssue iy dccordance with 8 revolution of Dhe dirsctor on T May' 2024
2. Significant accounting poficies
2.1 Basis of preparation

Thit fnarcisl statemerts of the Company kave baan prapased in accordance with Ingian Acoounting Stanoards (nd A5) notfles pursuam to section 133 of the Companies Aot 2013
read with rule 3 of the Companie (Indran Accountng Standseds) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Stand deos) Amend menl Rulss, 2016,

Thie fimanclal statements haves besn grepared and presented on o Watorical cos conventian dn on seerusl basls, evespt far the certain litancsl sisees and llabfities which have bren
mizasiered at fair valus [refer sccounting palicy regarding financial instruments)

The financisl stavemernts are presanted |n INA | s Lakha);, which i3 the functional currgncy, except when gtnerwise indfcatod,

2 3 Sty of significsnt sccounting policies

. Current werius ndn-current classification

Thie Com pany oresents aisess and Hobilines in the Balance Sheet based on currenty’ ngn-ciement classficetion. &n asset 5 treated as current when 12 15:
) Expected to oe realised or intended 1o be sold or cansimed in nosmal operating oycle

b Held primarily for the purpose of trading

i Expected to ba realiiet within twolve months after the reparting period, or

o] Lashoor cash equavalent unless restncted from boing exchanged o used to settin 5 liahibry for at least twebes manths after the reparting pesiod
Tha eampany classifins all other azaets’os non-cuirent

& "lbI”‘l'f' i current when.

a) it is mwpected te be settied in narmal speratng cécle

b} it Is held primaridy for the pur pose of wading

£ It i e fo e asttied within twelye months after tho reportng peniod, or

o There s no uneandetion sl tlght 1o Befer the setilemant of the llsbility for at laast twelie manths after the ssporing penod

Thie company ciassifies sl oiher Babilites au mon-curreni.

Draférrad t3x ssers and liabilites ae dassified as nor-turrent azsets and labilitied

The operating cycle s the tine between the scquisition of assels for propessing and their resliaeiian b cosh snd cash =guivilents. The Company kas idensified twelve months a5 is
ooerating cyche,

b. Fair value measurement

Fair walue 15 the price that would be receved to sef an asser or pald to transfer & hability i an orderly transaction Betwsen markel partetpants at the messurement diste.

All azsmts and lsbilities far which fair value (2 messursd or discosed in the financial satemants are categorised within the falr value hinrarchy, desyibiad a5 Tollows, based o the
st lavel input that ls sgnificant to the fair valug measurement.as 2 whaole!

@ Livel 1 - COuoted |dnadjutisd | masket prices i acthe markets for idenbical assets or Habllites
® Loyl 2 « Valughon techmigues for which the lowest level mput that is sgnitficant to the far valus measurement (s dirsctiy o indirectly obasrvalle
w Ll 3 - Valumtion techmigues Toe wiich the |owsst fevil maul that is dgniticant to the Bair value mesurement s unobzervable.

Far assets and kabiities that arn recagnised o the financal statements on @ recurring basis. the Company detenminges whether transers have otcurred betwesn [gvals in 1he Kisrarchy
by re-assessing categorisation [based on the |owest level mout that (s significant ta the fafr value measurement as o whole] ot the end of eadh reporting pericd.

Far tha purpose of fair value disciosures, tha Company has determonad casses of assets aad habilities on the bass of the rature, ehircieristics an righs of the asset or lisbility and
this bl af the lale valie hierarchy os edplabned shoyes.

In devermining the fair value of it finencial nstrumants, the Commpany uies @ vanety of mathods and assumptions that ane based on market conditions and nsks existing at sach
reparting date. The methads imed to determing Far vahis includas discounted cash Mo anelysis, availabbe quoted markst prices ond desler quotes All methads of eseaing Hr valus
resiilt fram general mprocimatian of value and the same may diffar fram the sachal realived vaim.




Cadence Enterprises Private Limited
Ground Floor, Mew Udaan Bhawan, Bpposite Terminal-3, IE1 Alrport, New Oelhi 110057
Cif: LIS2 1 00 L008FTC1TI11E

Notes ta Consolidated financisl statements for the year snded Mirch 31, 2024
£, Aeurnue recognition

flevenus v recugnasd to the extent thal L s probable that the economes bonefits il fliow to th Company and the cevarue can be rebably maasured Ezverue s maisused at the fair
waitie of thie consderation received or reseivable. taking into acceunt contractisally defingd terms of payment. Revenue ars staied exclulye af sales b, value added tax, goods and
=eiyice 138, The Tollowing specific recogniteon anteris must also be met before revenue & recognoed

Imtaren Incame |s recogresed using the effactive inferest vate mathea (IR, EIR s the rate that exaclly dwooents the estomated fdwre cash payments or receipts over ths sl ed
itfe af the financial mstryment-or & shorter percod, where approgrisce, toothe gress carrying amownt of the financlal #seet or to the amortised cost of § fimancial Esbiliy. Inferest
st 1§ ingliedad voder the head “Other Incoms™ m the statement of prafit and loss

Diiicdend mcarne b5 recogrized when the Eompany's ight o recelie dividend |s estahiishid by the reporting date

Prafit/ kess on sz & of mutual funds are recognized when the e to mutual funds cesses 1o exist

d. Tanes

Tak expanza comprises of curment tax and deferred tax. Corrent tax and defarrec tan are racognised in thie Statement of Profit and Loss, eaceqt whon thay relate toitesrs that are
recogiisad in OC1 or directly In @quity, = which case, the curmant and deferran e are also recpgnised in other comarehenswe moome or direciy in equity, respectivnly

Cutrrsmt e La 5 maagsurad 3t the amount expectiad 2 Ye paid to the income (e aulkodities in accordance with the Income-1as Act, 1961 enacted i India 3nd tae laws prevalling
Irt ke respective e ursdictiong where the Company operates. The ax reles and tix laws ioed to compute the amaurt are these that sre enacted or substantively eracted, st the
reparting date,

Dwferred incame ke reflect the impact of tinlng differances batween takshle inpore 3nd sceounting income originating during the current year and sevsrsal of Limng diffessred
for the earlier ey Defe ted tox iy messured wmg the tae rates and the b lows snacted o subitandnely enscted at the regarting date

Dnferred vaw lidilities ae reeopiizied for all Bacable tming differences. Defiried D guiets sre recopnised (o oll deductibie |emporary diferepoy, the carry Torwid of wnosed e
crexily and any unuted tax lnsses Deferred tax. gsaets are recognised to the outant thit |8 s proboble thal fesbhle profit will be svallebis againet which the deductibile temporary
diffeiencey, and the carry forward of onaded tax eredits and wroded tax [osses can be unlsed.

The carrging At ol deferd ed tax 3ot i seiewed af sach repasting dute armd reduced 1o the extsnt that it B no longes probable thit suffeient Pobils prafit will b seailable to
allow all ar part of the deferred tay supet 1o be uhilised, Unrecogniyed delirrod tas sz=ets are re-suessed ot sach repotting date anc are recogmeed fo the extant that 1§ b b
probable that future taeble profice wil allow the deterred tax agost to be recoversd.

Deaborred tax asets and delerid L habdities s ollse iF 2 legally enforceabis right eiats to et ofl et tar aesals apainat corrent G labdilies and the defered tevas reldte 1o
the same baeble 2atity and the semve txation suthoriby,

Manirrier aftier e i (MIAT] pald o @ year |5 charger to Hee statement of profil and loss &3 curnent ta, The Company recognizes MAT credit availatée o s asset only 10 the gatent
Hfl e i comvinsing evldencs that the Company will pay aasmal incame ta during tha specifisd peind, | &, the pestad Tor which MAT credit s sllmwed 1o 9e carvied Forwasd. In
the year in which the Compary recognizes MAT credic as an asset the sasi asses s created by way of cradit to the staremant of profit and loss svd shown as “hAaT Credit Entitemant,”
The Camaany reviews the “MAT oradit entitlement” gssat 31 aach reporting date and writes down the asset tothe extent the Cempany toes not nave comincing eyidence that it wil
pary noomiE tas during thespecfied posiod

&. Barrowing costs
Borroding cost incldes Intesest, @mortizatian of ancillary costs Incurred in connaction with the arrangersent.of borrowings and pxchange differences arlsing from forcgn currenoy
it v ings 1o | he extemt theey are regandad as an adpstment bothe nterest cost

“Barrowing costs directly sttributable to the scquisition, tonstruction or production of an asset that recessanly mkes 3 substaniia! perlof of Hma toget ready for its intended uso e
-sale are capliadived as part of the cost of the respective asset Al other borrowing cosls are expensed In the year they ooour

f. Prowisions

A proviiian s-recognized when the Compsny hasa present ohlgation @5 @ result-of past event, It is probable that @ gutficw of resources emboryang eccoomic heacfits wil| be
requared (o seftie the shigation and 7 miable estimate can be made of the smount of the obigatien. Where the company sepects some o0 &l af 3 prosizion to be eimbursad, foe
examole under 30 insrance. contract, the reimbursement i recogrized a8 separate aael bat enly when the reimbarsement 15 wirtusily certain. The sxpensa relating to any provision
is presenred in the scstement of profic and loss net of any resmhursement.

o e sifict bs matesial, prosdsions ara cecognised at peesend value by discounting the expacted future cush Nows 808 peetas ate thas reflects curcent market sssessments of tha time
walus ol imaney,

. Contingent fabiiny and assets

Disel osires for contingent liability are made whan there 15 @ possiiie and prasent abligation thar anses from past evenns which s not recagnised since = nar proosbls that there will
b an cuifiow of resources. When these |3 a posibie and present abligation in respect of which the Ukeihaod of oitliow of resources s remate, na disclosire s made.

Loss fontinganeies arisng from daims, Sgaton, asessmant, fines, panpities, etx, are recorded whan it 5 probable thot a fabiity has been incurred and the amount can be seasonably
estimaled,

Contingent assets are Aot recognized in the financial statements.




Cadunce Enterprivas Privae Limited
Grourd Flaor, New Udaan Bhawan, Dpposite Terminal-d, 161 Airport, Bew Delhi 110037
Cin: LS21DO0LLCORPTCLT 2110

Kotes ta Consolidated fnancial statements Tor the year ended March 31, 2024
. Financlal lnstruments
A fipapcal (Astrurment §any copmact that gives rise 1o 8 inancialasset of goe entity and 3 financal habdity o equity insrueient of another entity

Financlal assets
Initial racagnition and measurement

Al financis! sssets are racognisod infialy 3t Fair vaoe plus, in the cise of Anancisl assets nat recorded o fair walue Irough prodit and (ass, tresaction costs that are artebesable o
thie goouisition of the Fnandal asset

Subseguent maasurement

Far purpuses of sbseguan maasirement, financal aseets are classifled inothe below categores
{a] Financial ssess nf smiorllsad cost

{a} Financial assets at amortised cost

Finaneia gasets ara wosequantly measurad st amortised cost If these financial assets sre Reid within 3 businass where the objective (s to hold these assets in order 1o coffect
comiractual cagh flows and the contractual terms of the fimancal asset ghie rise on specified dotes o cash flows that ane sofsly payments of princpal and interest on the princpal
amount gutstanding

After initial meassrament, such financal assets are subsequently messured 3t smarised cost using the BA methed, Amoctise cost (s calculatad by taking Into sccaunt any discount
or pramium on scquisition und lses ar costs that are wn Integral part of the EIR The EIA smortisation 4 incladed i finante income & the Stalement of Profil ond Loss. The lodses
arking fram impeairment are recogrased in tha Statement af Frofit and Loas Thizs category generally apalias 1o rade and other recalvables, loans and other financlal assets.

[k} Financial Assets af falr valus theough other comprehensive Income (FUTDG

Firancial assets are meased ar fulr value through other compretensive income I thess financial sisets are hedd within o business whoss shigctive & echisved by both collscting
guntraciual cash Aows and selling financial assets and the contracual torms of tne financel asses gve rseon spectlied deses 10 cah tows that are solely payments of principal ard
irterest on the prinooal amownt outstanding, Dervative inst uments indudid 0 IWTDD category are messured inltalby as well as 5i each reporiing date at (el value Movement in
- falr-vadua is recognizac in O

e} Fmanchal Assety inchuding derlieatives at fair value shrough profitor foss (FUTPL)
Firkanal assetd are measured at & value throigh profit and loss urless it 13 measured ot amertised cort or at-fair value through othes compransnaive neame o Inblal recognitian.
The transaction costs directly attributanis to the acouisition of fmancisl asists at fair value trgugh profit and los are immedintely recognised m e Stasemant of Prafic end Lo,

Oermcagnition

i hinancial mset is primarily derecagried when:

fu) sheright to receive cauh lows from the assat has expiced, or

Y khe Company hes tramsfemred ity rights 1o recane cosh Ao lrom he gl or hat sssumed an obligation o peay the received cosh flows i Full withowt material defay 1o & thad
party under & pes-thiough Brrangement, and al the Comgany has wransferred substartially all the rlsks and rewards of the assen, or b the Company hes neither transferred nor
retained sbrstantialy all the riskl and rewardd of the assed, 5uf haa transfered cortiol of Lhe asssi.

On dereeagnation of & finaneial asset in its enblrety, the défferances betwsen rhi carrying amolunts magsured ot the dete of derscagnition and the consideration recelvadis recagnised
In the Statemant of Prafit and Loss,

Lmipairmant of finoncial assets

The Company applies the axpocted credit foss (ECL model for measurement and recogriticn of imgalimant lnsses on the followingg financial assets and credit risk esposure:

{a) Financial 2xsets that are maasured ot amortised cost o trade reoeluatles

[k} Trada recenables, sny confractual right 19 receive cash ar ary anather financia asset that resalt from trargactions that are within the sope of ind A5 115
The Lompany follows the smplified apprasch for meagnition of impairment loss allowance on trade ecavables. The appiication of the smplified approsch does not mguire 1
Company to trach changes in credit risk. Rathes, If recognizes impairmant Joss allowance based on lifetome ECLs at oich reporting date, right From its inftisl recognitian.

Far recognition of impalrment loss on ather Armcla assets and rsh oepesurs, the Company determires whether (here mas boer a signiflnl iroeese o the crekt rak soen injilal
recagnition, If credis risk has nat increased significanty, twolve-month €00 & used (o provide for smpairment los, However, if cradic nsk has increased significantty, lifanme ECL s
used. IF in @ subsaquent period, cradit guality of the instrement impraves such thae there i5 no langer & significent increase in credit risk since inidtad recognition, then She enfity reverts
to reccgnising Imgasment loss allowanca based an twelve-maorth ECL

Lifetima ECL are the sxpected credit Iosses resulting from all possible defauls events over the expected |ife of a financal insrumsnr. The twelve-month ECL s a porpion of the lifstime
ECL witvch rasuiles Trom default events that @& possibla within teeive monthy sfter the reporting date,

ECL b3 thet clifleremnce Letwenn net of ol contractual cash Mows thet sre dus to the Company i sccordarics widi the conwact a4d all the cash flows that the entity expects 1o receive
e, oll cash shortfalls), discounted a4 The origeal FiR

When estimating the cash fiows, an entity is required to congider:

» All contractsal terms of the financlel instrument (including prepagment, exteasior, call ard similar opoiors| over the expected life af the financlal instrument, However, In rare cases
whemn the gepected He of tfie lemandcinl instrement connot be estimated relishly, thien the entity 3 roguired (0 use the remaining contraciud term of the forancial inslrumen

= Lash figwes from the sale ol moiiateral hed or other aedit enhancamerts that are integral tn the criradust teems

Az a practical mepadient, the Company uses a provision matrx to debermine rrnpllmil'rir Ipas gllowarce antrade recalvablas:

The Company doss ngt have any purchased o origmated credit-impaired fimandal assebs, Le, Snancial assers which sre cedil impaired on purchasaforiginason:

ECLimparmant [oss allowance (or reusssal) recognized thirng tha period 5 recognized in tha Statement of Profit and Loss. This amaunt 5 refiacted dnder the head "ather sspenies’ in
tha Statament of Profit and Loss




Cadence Enterprises Private Limited
Groung Flaar, New Udasn Bhawan, Dppodite Terminegl-3, 1G] Alrport, Mew Delhi 110037

CIN: WUSLL00DER0IEPTCLTZLIAR
Moles o Consolidated financial staterments for e year endsd March 31, 2024
Financial liabifities
Instial recagnition and migasyrerent

Finaricial abilitiss are dezsified af inadial recogmitian, e Feraranal lisduiities st lairvalue through prnF.rtqr Joss [FET P, hisares and borrowing, payabled, s approprate
All financial Hakilivees are recognised initialy at fairvalue and in the cade of sayobles, net of dirnctly att-ibutabie trangaction coats
The Cormpdiny's linancial lahslitle meade tade and other poyables and loens and bosrowings

Subsaquent messiErement

The measarameant of fipanclal labiiities depends on their clesfication 03 discusied below-

Trade and other payahles
for trade and other payabies. maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date, the carrying smounis: approsimate falr value iz used dus to the shot marwity of thase

nEtrumenti

Laans and borrowings
Aftar Initlal recogndtion, Interest-heaning loans and borrowings ade mibsequantly mezsured at amortises cost using the £1R sethod. Gains and lofses are recognisad in profit or loss

when the liabdlities re derecognised as well as through the ER amortisation process. AmorTised cost 12 caleulated by taking Infto sccount @ny discount of premium o acguisition and
feas av costs thal a2 an integral pait of Uha EIN. Tha EIR aman satkii 5 ingluded a3 linance costs in thie statement ol proll and I This calegsiv gererally ababes b o bwings.

Derecopnition
A fimancial lishility is derecognied when the oalightion under the lability |s discharged or carceiled or papired. When an eelsting financial liabiity 15 roplaced by angther fram the
mme l=nder on substantially diffsrent terme, or the terms of an existing kabdity are subgtantially modified, such an gechange or mpgrhcamen is treated a5 the cerecogrition of the
orign labllity and the recognition af o new liability, The differanca in the respecion carrying amounts i resogmised in the Steoment of frofit and Loss

DFfu=tting of financiad instrurrents
Financial assets and financial Babilities arn ofiset anc the nat amount is reparted in the azlance sheet F thare 5 0 currently anforcashble legal right to offset thi recogrised amaunts
and tharm |s an intention to sotthe on & nt basis, tomege th ssetsang settly the iebilides simalisaecuaty

i Canh and Cash equivalents
Cash-and cosh equivaients include cosh at bank and depesits with banics having maturily of three morths or (ess Tha bank depossds with anginel maturity of up to three months are
dansified m emb iing caik eguwilenis and bank depowts with afiginal maturity of more than three manths are dazsified @ other hank balancow

|- Statermens of Cash Flow
The Statesrient of Cash Flow s reported wiing the mdiredt method, wherety the net profr acfore tas is adjusted bor the eters of trangactions ot & non-cash nature, sy deterraly or
accrualy of pesk or lutisre apevating chia receiplt of payments and lein of income o Aepenses aadacisted with investng or Anandng cash fows. Tha Stabemont of Cashi flows brom

opereting, investing end financing activit éx of the Comaany are segragated.

2.3 Significant sccounting judgments, estimates and assumptions
The pregarstion of fimandal statements in canformity with ind A5 regueres marsgement o make edtimates and assumptions thal sffect the reported arroumts of revepee, sspenses,

wssets argd lahilinse Actual resuls could differ from those estimates. Any revislon (o accounting estimates 3 recognised praspectively.

The key assmphons concermng tha future and athee key sources of estimating urcarsinty ot the reporting date; that have a sgaifleant risk ol ceasing 8 metenal adjustment to the
tarnging amounts of assets and llabilithes within the next financial pear, are desoribed below. The Compary bas Dased its assumphons ang estimiates on garametars avallable whs the
firarcial statmments wern prepared. Existng circumatances and assumptions about future developments, howeéer, may changs due to marke! changes of drowmasnces arising st
are boyond the control of the Company. Sech changes are refisced in theassumptions when they accur,

2.3.3 impairment of firancial assats

The Company assesses impalrment on financal assets based on Expected Credit Loss [ECL| moded. The provisson maten s biased an s histoncally obrerved default rates over the
eapected e of tha financial assats and i adjusted for forwand looking estimates At every reposting date, the histarkcal observet default rales are updated and changes i farward

lpokimg estimates are analysed

1.3.7 Galng Concem

The financis sisaments al tha Cornpany Have teen praparsd on the bada thal the Company = a going concern @ Lthie oom pany e shility o continue o 2 going oendern
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Cadence Enterprises Private Limited
Ground Floor, New Udaan Bhawan, Oppasite Terminal-3, 1GI Airport, New Delhi 110037

CIN: US210001L2008PTC172118

Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

| Rs. In Lakhs)
Note 3 - Property, Plant & Equipments
Reconciliation of Carrying Amount Land Building Total
Gross block
As at April 01, 2022 - - -
Addittons 3BB.55 388.55
Disposals - - -
At March 31, 2023 - 388.55 388.55
Gross block
As at April 01, 2023 - 3BB.55 3ER.55
Additions 10.31 45,95 56.26
Disposals - - -
At March 31, 2024 10.31 434.50 434,81
Depreciation
At April 01, 2022 - - -
Charge for the year .04 0.04
Disposals -
At March 31, 2023 - 0.04 0.04
Depreciation
At April 01, 2023 - 0.04 0.04
Charge for the year - 13.24 13.24
Disposals - . .
At Miarch 31, 2024 - 13.28 13.28
Net black as at March 31, 2023 - 388.52 388.52
Met block as at March 31, 2024 10.31 421.22 431.53
Mote 4 - Goodwill an consalidation
Particulars 31-Mar-24 i1-Mar-23

Cost
As at Lst April'2023 28.36 -
Additions . 28.36
Disposals -
At March 31, 2024 28.36 2B36
Accumulated Impairment
As at 1st April’2023 - -
Change/Other adjustments for the year x
At March 31, 2024 . -

28.36 28.36

Met Catrﬂn! Amount




Cadence Enterprises Private Limited
Ground Fioor, New Udaan Bhawan, Opposite Terminal-3, 1Gl Alrport, Mew Delthi 110037
CIN: U52100DL2008PTC1TZ11E

Motes to Consoiidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

| Rs. In Lakhs)

Mote 5- Loans 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

Carried at amortised cost

non current

Unsecured, considered good

Loan Given to Related Party | refer note no.28) 14,799.00 24.375.00

Unsecured, considerad Doubtful . .

14,799.00 24,275.00

Current

Unsecured, considered good -

Loan Given to Related Party

Loan Given to Others

Unsecured, considerad Doubtful -

Allowanees for bad and doubtful loans - -

Total 1a4,799.00 24,275.00

Note 6 - Other financial assets - Non-current 31-Mar-24  31-Mar-23

Advances Recoverable 2.50 2,50

Advance for Capltal Goods 138.29 251.51

[nterest Accrued But Not Due 561526 1,055.02

Tatal 5,756.05 1,304.03

Mote 7 - Cash and Cash Equivalents 31-Mar-24  31-Mar-23

Balance with Banks
COn current accounts 19.44 861
Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months -

Cash on hand - -

19.44 B.61

Far the purpase of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise tha following:

Balance with Banks 3i-Mar-24  31-Mar-23
On current accounts 1544 g6l
Depaosits with original maturity of less than 3 months . .

Cash on hand . -

19.49 B.6l

MNote 8 - Other Assets 31-Mar-24  31-Mar-23

Current

DOthers

Advance income tax (Net of Provisions) 1.28 122.60

Other Advances . 0.25

1.28 122 .85

Allowance for daubrful advances - .

Total 1.28 122 .85

Note:

Other advances due by directors or other officers, etc.

- Non-current

Current

Break up of financial assets carrled at amartised cost

31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

Mon - current

Current

Cash and cash equivalent {Refer note 7)
Total

19.44 B.0l
19.44 B.61




Cadence Entorprises Private Limited
Graund Floar, New Udaan Bhawan, Opgasite Terminal 3, IG1 Alrpart, New Delhi 110037
CIN: US21000L2008PTE1 72118

Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

[ Rs. In Lakhg)
Note 9 - Share Capital 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
[No. of Shares) Rs. Lakhs [Mo. of Shares] R, Lakhs
Authorized shares
Equity Shares of Rs.10 Each 10000 100 10,0400 100
10,000 1.00 10,000 1.00
Note 34 - issued share capital
« Equity shares of Rs.10 each 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
{No. of Shares] Rs, Lakhs Mo, of Shares) s, Lakhs
At the beginning aof the year 10,0050 1.00 10,000 1,00
lgsuied during the year e . i i
Ourstanding at the end of the year 10,000 100 10,000 1.00

Termns/ rights attached to equity shares

The campany hasonly one class of sgulty shares having a par value of fis. 10 ger share. Each holder of these shares e entitled to reteive
dividands-as and when decizred by the:campany sublect ta the aparoval of the sharehalders in the ensuing Aanual General Mesting
Each halder shall have voting rights in proportion to the their paid wp squtty share cagltal

In the event af liquidation of the Company, the hoiders of equity shares will be eotitled to recei femaining assets of the Comparny, after
distribution of all prefersntizl amounts. The distribution will be |n propartionate ta the number of eguity hares held by the
skaroholders.

Note 98- Details of shargholde rs holding more than 5% shares in the Company

31-Mar-14 31-Mar-23
Mos. % of Holding Nos, % of Holding
Equity shares of fs. 10 each fully paid
GMR Enterprises Private Limited 3,998 99.949% 5,995 99.99%
5,999 99.59% 4,999 99.59%
Kote 3C- Detalls of promoter sharsholding.
Promoter Namiz No. of shares ot the Change durkng Mo af shares a1 % of total shares
beginning of the th year the ond of the
yaar year
31-Mar-24
GMR Enterprises Private limbed 9,995 - 9,909 99.95%
M. MY Srinlvas (Nomines of GAMA Enterprises Private Lmited| 1 1 0.01%
31-Mar-13
GMR Enterprisss Private limited rirhis] - 9,599 99.35%
s | i G.00%
P B WL Seinivas [Berefical cwner GMA Enerprives Private Limitedp
Thare ks no change in $hara holding during the year
{ Rs. In Lalkhs)
Note 10 - Other Equity I1-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Retained Earnings / Surplus in the statement af prafit and loss
Balance as per last fingncial statements {79.94) [I7.42Z)
Prefit /| Loss) for the year [324.52) [52.56)
Total Retained Profit/ |Loss) (404,50 (79.98)
DOther comprahensive income
Dther Reserves

Totad {44'-"1;50! 1??9:5‘3!




Cadence Enterprises Private Limited
Ground Foor, New Udaan Bhawan, Opposite Terminal 3, 151 Airport, New Delhi 110037
CiM: LS OG0UHI0ETCIT211R

Motes to Consofidated financial statemants for the year ended March 31, 2024

[ Bs. In Lakhs)
Nate 11 - Barrowlngs Effective I8 Maturlty 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Non-current Borrowlngs
Listed, Rated, Secured Mon Convertible Debentures 1.365,48 26,157 .20
21,369.48 26,157.90
Unsecured Loan from Related Parties
Lears from Group Companies| Unsecured) .8 20,0060
23.03 20,00
Total borrowlngs 21,392.51 26,177.90
Less: Current maturites of ioag t=rm oormowings -B,244.75 -B,192.66
Total non-current borrawings 13,147.76 17,985.24
Currant Barmwings
Unsecurad
Loans from Group Companies) Unsecured) -
Secured
Curresnt maturities of long term barrawmngs B.244.75 8,192 66
Tatal current borrowings B,244,75 B.192.66
Net current borrowings B.244.75 B.192.66
Apgregate Unsecurod lopns 2303 821466
Agrepats Secufea ipans 21,359 48 26,157.80

Compary has sued Listed secured, rated, redeemable and non-convertible debentures {'NCE"s] ot Rs: 10 Lakhs (R 10,00.000) face
velue cach amounting bo Rs, 22 36948 Lakhs | Including accrued Interest of Rs. 4,199.48 Lakhs and (March 2023 RBa. 26,157.90 Lakhs
Including acerued Interest of T 1,157,890 lakhe | . Thess NCIYs are secured against the pledge of GWA Alrpors infrastrusture Ltd
(Listed equity shares] held by the Holding Company. 6,610 Lekhs NCD's redeemable ' Dac'24, Rs. 5,650 Lakhs NCD's redeamabie In
D' 25 and balanoe Az, 4,910 Lakhs NCD's redeemalbie in Dec'26

Unzecured Loar from Group Company R 23,03 Lakhe | March 23 Bs 2000 Lakhs), Rs. 15 Lakhs repayvable i the month of JulyZ024 and
halaren R5. 5,03 Lakhs repayable In the moath of Sept'2025

{ R4 In Lakhs)
Nota 12 - Other financial lablllties 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-13
Current
Carried at amortised cost
Irberest acorued but not duwe 23.98 22,00
Difier payablas 1.58 014
Total 25.56. 2016
| R=. In Lakhs)
Note 13 - Other labilities 31-Mav-24 31-Mar-23
Current
Staturory Lisbilitles 2143 078
Other payables .06 051
Total 21.09 11.23
Break up of financial liabifities carried at amortised eost [ Rs. In Lakhs)
31-Mar-24 31-Miar-23
Non - cumrent
Borrowings (Refer note 11} 71,35751 26,177.90
21.392.51 26,177.90
Current
Other financial llabiiivies (Refer note 13) 2556 22.16
25.56 22,16

21.418.07 26,200.06




Cadence Enterprises Private Limited
Ground Floar, New Utdazan Bhawan, Oppasite Terminal-3, 1G] Airport, New Delhl 110037
CiN: US2100DL200BPTCET2118

Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

{ Rs. In Lakhs)
Nate 14 - Revenue from Operations 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Revenue from operations

Operational Hevenue # &
Total - -
Mote 15 - Other Income 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Interest income on Financial assets carrind at amortised cost

Others N.588.19 1.176.08
Other non aperating income

Income from Commission & profit on Assignment of Villa 102.56 100.00

Interest on T Refund 1.91 -
Total 4,693.06 1,276.00
Mote 16 - Finance cost 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Intarest on;

Loans 4,892 68 1,180.61
Bank Charges 104 5.04
Other Finance Charges - 125.00
Total 4.892.72 1,310.65
Mote 17 - Othar expenses 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Repsirs & Maintenance - Others 177 0.838
Rates & Taxes 187 750
Professional Charges 3.77 6.43
Other expenses 0.08 0.1
Audit Fes 1.75 0,20
Advertisement Expensss 0288 0,24
Riegistration & Membership Fees 0.14 -
Demat charges 011 -
Provision for Doubtful Advances 71.51 -
Trustee Charges 1.48 2.60
Total 85.36 17.87
Payment to auditor 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
As auditor:

Audit fee 1.75 0.20
1.75 0.20

YrgyaraghmE

loud, THag, |
Chunngi - B Q1Y




Cadence Enterprises Private Limited
Ground Floor, New Udaan Bhawan, Opposite Terminal-3, 1GI Airport, New Delhi 110037
CIN: US2100DL2008BPTC172118

Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

18 Earnings per share (EPS)

a) Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

b) Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the parent (after adjusting for interest on

the convertible preference shares) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted
average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares,

c) The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

{ Rs. In Lakhs)
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Profit attributable to the equity holders of the company (3224.52) [52.56)
Profit attributable to the equity holders of the parent 1324.52) (52.56)
Weighted average number of equity shares used for computing Earning per 10,000.00 10,000.00
share (Basic and diluted)
10,000.00 10,000.00
Earning per share (Basic) (Rs.Ps) {3,245.18) {525.64)
Earning per share [Diluted} (Rs.Ps) {3,245.18) [525.64)
10.00 10.00

Face value per share (Rs.Ps)
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Cadence Enterprises Private Limited
Ground Floor, New Udaan Bhawan, Opposite Terminal-3, IG| Airport, New Delhi 110037
CIN: U52100DL2008PTC172118

Motes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
{ Rs. In Lakhs)

Capital Commitments

31-Mar-24 _31-Mar-23
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for (net of advances) - -

Uncalled liability on shares and other immestments partly paid

Contingent Liabilities

31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

Contingent Liabilities (not provided for) in respect of
Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt;
Other money for which the company is contingently liable.

Trade Recelvables 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

Mo trade or other recelvable are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person.
Mor any trade or other receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member,
Trade receivables are non-interest bearing, if any,

Segment Information

The company s engaged primarily in the business of sale and purchase of all goods & services etc., Considering this the company has only one business /
geographical segments as per Ind AS 108 "Operating segment”.

The company does not have any employees on its rolls during the period covered In financials and hence na provision Is made for retirement benefits

The company does not have any Lease transaction reportable under Ind AS 116.

The Campany did not have any subsidiaries as of 31st March'2022, thus the cash flow for the F.Y 2022-23 not applicable.

No Foreign Currency Transaction happened during the periods covered under financials thus no foreign exchange difference arise.

Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position as on March 31, 2024,
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Cadence Enterprises Private Umised
Ground Floos, New Lidaan Bhawan, Opposits Terminal-2, K8l Alrpore, New Delhl 110037
CiN: USZ100DL200BPTCL 18

Wotes to Consalidsted finantial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

| R in Lk
¥ Fair valoes
A Arraunting clasifiestion and Falf vilued
Set out below, is a companison by dass of the tarmping amounts and fair vaive of the cormpany's finarcsl invrements.
Carrying walue Fair value
31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21 B1-Mac-24 B1-Mar-13
Fnanciyl ssiety
| Weasred ot fo valoe thirough Proft or Loss (FYT#]
3} et ey '
Mo at st hed cosd
Lo shd cank egu valent 198 1%} 1944 EA1
Othaar Curnint Adsets 1= (FAT . 1LI% 11285
Total () = i} W72 13146 .71 a
Flnancial Itabslithes
Merwmred at amorthed oot
{a} Borrowings. 1314178 17,585 14 pERTTS 17,585 14
(6} Trade payablel , : = k
(e} Other Anancial labiitie B.291.40 B2 11 B.295.40 B2l
Total ——tECE, 26313 Laus RIS

fhe carying amount of fingncial instruments such as cash & tash equivalents and bevrowings and other finarcisl labilitles ore contidered o B ame s thelr faie value due to the'
short term natare,

The fair valuss of fnencial iassty and financal liabilities recorded in the balance shoet in eespect of which quoted oo lcei in active markets are svallsble sre measured using valuation
ipehalgus, if wy,

. Falr Value Hiararchy
Thi faliowing table provides falr value messurement hierarchy of finanoal insmanms as referred innote (4] sbove

Quantitetve discosres fair value messutemant hierarchy
Year Loval L Lavel } Lgvel 3 Total

Financlal Assats
11-ha-24
11-Mar-3
There have bean no transters Level 1 and Level 3 ouning the period.
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Cadence Enterprises Private Limited
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Notes to Consolidated financial statemants for the year ended March 31, :ﬁu

| Rs. In Lakhs)
Capital management
For thi purpose of the Company's capttal management, the capital includes Issued equily capital, ard other eguity reseries attributable to the equity holders of
this Company, The piinary ebjacibe of the cofmpany’s capitsl maragerment [s 10 masimse the sharabolde: vabse,
Tha Company mtanages its capital structure and makes adjustment in light of changes {n economie condithons and the requirements of financial covenants, To
rraintzin and adjust the capital sructure; the Company may adjust the diidend peyment to shareholders, return capital te shareholderd or ssue rnew shases, The
Company manltors capital using a gearing ratio, which is o net debt divides by total coital plus net debt. The Comgpany's palicy & to keep the gearing ratio st an
aptirum level, The Campany inchades within ret debt interest beating loans and barrawings, trade and other payables, less cash and cash equivalents.

31-Mar-24 A-Mar-23

Borrewings 21,392.51 26177.80
Total Deb [ A] 21,352.51 26,177.40
Equity 100 1490
Other Faulty (A0S0 [7%.98]
Total Equity | B) |403.50) (7808
Total equity and total debt [ O ArB) (21,796.01) 126,256.88)
Gearmng ratio % [ A&/C) 53E.15% 0G5 70%
Financial risk management ohjectives and palicies

I'he Comipany's princigal fimancial liabilices, comprises loans and bomrowings, trade and other payables: Tne maln purpose of these financkal liahilites 5 1o finance
the Company's operations. The Company's grinclpal finenceal assets includes Loans & advenoes, other recelvatles, cash and cash equivalents that derive girectly
fram [ts oparations..

Thae Company is expised (o rharket rek, credid risk and liquidity risk, The Comgarny's senlor management oversees the management of theses risks. The Company's
senor management ks supported by a risk management team that advises on financizl risks @nd the approprate finandal risk governance fremework for the
Company, The risk-management team ensures that the Company’s financlal activities ara governad by appropriate policles ano procadures and that financial risks
are [dentified, measured snd managed |0 sccordancs with the Compary's peilicles and rick atjectves, Al dirbvative sctivithes for rak management purpowes are
carrigd aut by tepina that hows the approprigte skills, sipeienos snd superision. 1L 5 the Company's policy that no Lrading in desivitives for speculativie perposes
may be undertzken, The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised as below,




Codence Enterprises Private Limited
Ground Flog!, New Udgsan Bhowan, Opposite Termingl-3, 1G] Akrport, New Delkl 110037
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Metes to Consollidated inanclal stataments for the year ended Mareh 31, 2004

| R i Lalkha)
Market Rink

Market Rk s the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a Francis irstnement will fluctuate because of changes in market poces. Macket risk comprives of
interest rate <ak and curmancy k. Financlasl Instraments affected by market risk Fclode borrowings. Jeposts, rade recelvables, trade payabies, and vther
francial assets including derivative financial instruments.

& interest Rate Rk

intEraet rate riak i the risk that the fair value or future cash fiows of 2 financal iInstromene will flurruste pecsume of changes in markey Slerest rates. The
Corrpany's expomuse to the rak ol changes in market sienesi rates retates primarily to the Company’s long-term delst obigatiom with flesating Interait ratei.

The Infoming Lable demandirated The senotivity 10 § reasonably powsibls chargs in mmarest rates pn that portion of foans and borrowings affected. With all ather
wariables hokd tonstant, the Company’s prolit befers s b affectad thiough the impadt on Nloating rate bonowings, 25 follows:

31-Mar 74 31-Mar-13
Incrapte/docroate  Eecton profit Increazefdecremelect onproli
in basis gaints E=fore tex in basts oty before tan
N W50 il =50 wil
{-150 N (& il

The assumad movermant |n bagls points for the imlerest rate sensitvity anelysis is based on the currently observable market environment.

b. Fareign Currency Risk

Foralgn cureency riak |5 the tisk that the falr value or future cash flows of an @posure wil fluciuate because of changes In focelgh sxchange rabies. Company Fas
nn exposana to the risk of changes b forsign exchange rates in raspect of Operatng, Investing and Finasclel actvitles,

Credit Risk

Credit rik s the rak that countarperty wil not meet s obligations undar @ Ninancial instrument of customer conbract, leading to a Ninanclal loss. Finsncial
Instriments That are subject to crad riuk @nd concentrathon thereal principaty consist of trade recstvables, [pans recelvables, investmants, Cash and cash
arjuivalenats, derivatves and nanciil gusrantees provided by the Company,

Trade recahvables and Loan & Advances
The majar enposur to credit risk at the reparting date s primarily from loan & advances.




Cadence Enterprises Private Limited
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Motes to Consalidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

[ Rs. Im Lakha)
For recenables, as & practical expedient, the Company compuies supected credit loss allowsnct basad on @ piowision matte. The provision matris & prepaned
based or historically observed default rates over the expected life of trade recelvabies and is sdjusted for forward-looking estimates. Additionally, the Compariy
Ao comptoy custamer spetifc Alowances o each reporting date.

The mankmum exgosure to credit cel gt (e reporting date & the carmying value of each class of linanca’ assets. The TCL a calculated on default probability
percertage artived from the nistone default trerd. (n order to determing the defaud probablioy perentage. 3 Vimple sverage of antomar wise soedilic
#lawances or actual bad debls incurred In succeeding year [derved rates) (whichewer is bigher) fo- the precading throe yars & consdored & 3 percentage of
Eroas retenables positions of each customes 34 31 reSoTng Sate.

Other linanrisl asety

Creaht ek from cash and tath equivalents, term deposits and derivative financial instruments 6 managed by the Company's fressory depariment ik
manageswnl team A atordance with the Company’s poly. investments, in the form =f foed deposics, of surphus funds sre made only with banks The
milalruen eapodure 10 chedit risk BT the reporting date i the camying value of sach dass of insecal assets.

Uguidity Bk

The Compare's principal sources of liguidity sre cash snd cash squivalents and the cesh flow that = gereveted from coeratais. The Cempany regulary moniton
thee redling forecans and sctual casrfinwe, 10 #RaLTE it has sulficient funds to meet the cperationzl needs.

The table below summathe e matudty grolile of the Company's fnancial Haslites based on contractually agreed undivcownted cash fows

As on March 31, 2024 Within 1 year More than Totai
1 year

Borrowings . 13.447.76 13,147,768

Trade atid Bher Payables ‘ . .

Db eurtun flnaecial labilites B,291.40 . £,291 40

8.291.40 13,147.76 11,439.16

“As on March 31, 2023

Borrowlngs . 1798514 17,085,148
Trace and Othar Payahles . . .
Dithie eurrent nonca’ lalbdlivies 822611 - B.226.11

—E1, SR, N
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Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 | Rs. In Lakhs)

31 Under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, [MSMED) which came into farce from 2 Octobar 2006,
certaln disciosura are required (o be made relating to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprizes. On the basls of the informaticon and
records available with the management, there are no outstanding dues to the Nicro, Small and Medium Enterprises
cevetopment Act, 2006 Disclosure @5 per Section 22 of “The Micra; Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006" (as
certified by the managemeant).

Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
The Principal amnount and interest due thereon remaining unpaid
o any supplier

- Principal Amount il hail
- Interest thereon M i
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16,

along with the amounts of the payment mads to the supplisr Ml Nl
beyand the appointad day.

The amoint of interest due and payable tor the year of delay in
rmaking payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed

day during the year) but without adding the interest specified Nl Wil

under this Act

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid Nii Ml

The amount of further interest remaining dua and payable in the

succeading year til the date of finalzation of financial statements il M
Az per our report of sven date attached
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